DCA11MA076

Flight Test Standard Practice Manual, FT-SOP-001

(87 pages)



1.0 STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - Noted 2 Page 1 of 82

Flight Test

10/28/2011

Prepared by:

Date

10/31/2011

Flight Test Safety Office

Reviewed:

Date

Manager Flight Test Engineering

10/28/11 Reviewed:

Manager

Date

Flight Test Instrumentation

Reviewed:

PDT Lead II

Flight Test Operations

Date

keviewea: Sr. Manager

<u>10 |31| ||</u>

Date

Flight Test Maintenance

Reviewed:

Group Head Engineering Operations

Date

10/31/11

10/31 Approved: Y

Director Flight Test

Date



FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page i of 82

Flight Test

REVISION DESCRIPTION

Revised By:	Description
Revsion A: Added several sections including TM room protocol, miscellaneous corrections, address ISRA comments	Description This document is a revision to GV-GER-1329
Date 11/7/2011 Aviation Safety Office	Reason Update to the latest processes and procedures
	Residual Benefits Standardization.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page ii of 82

_

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

TABLE OF CONTENTS

1.0	PURPOSE	. 2
1.1 1.2	Scope Intent	. 2 . 2
2.0	ORGANIZATION AND AUTHORITIES	. 2
2.1 2.2	Flight Test Organization Governing Authority	. 2 . 3
3.0	ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES	. 3
3.1 3.2 3.2.1 3.2.2 3.3 3.3.1 3.3.2 3.3.3 3.4	Chief Flight Test Engineer. Flight Test Engineer (D343) Flight Test Engineer (FTE) Data System Specialist. Flight Test Instrumentation Engineering Instrumentation Operations Engineer (D345) Instrumentation Mechanical Designer (D348) Instrumentation Technicians. Flight Test Coordination and Operations (D346)	. 4 . 4 . 4 . 4 . 5 . 5 . 6
3.4.1 3.4.2 3.5 3.6 3.6.1 3.6.2 3.6.3 3.6.4 3.6.5	Aircraft Coordinator Flight Test Operational Support Flight Test Maintenance Other Support Functions Product Development Team Leads Aviation Safety Office Monitor Quality (D634) Materials (D913) Material Review Board.	· 6 · 6 · 7 · 7 · 7 · 7 · 8 · 8
3.6.6	Flight Operations (D926)	. 8
4.0	FLIGHT TEST PROCESS	. 8
5.0	PHASE 1: REQUESTS & SCHEDULING	. 9
5.1 5.2 5.3	Authorization Product Development Programs Non-Product Development Programs	. 9 10 10
6.0	PHASE II: PLANNING	11
6.1 6.2 6.2.1 6.2.2	Test Plan (Figure 2 Ref 3) Interim Flight Restriction (Figure 2 Ref 4) IFR Purpose IFR Process	11 11 11 12
6.3 6.3.1 6.4 6.5 6.5.1	Flight Test Risk Assessment/Risk Alleviation (Figure 2 Ref 5) Test Safety Hazard Analysis (TSHA) Test Point Table (Figure 2 Ref 6) Instrumentation Requirements Definition (Figure 2 Ref 7) Critical Flight Instrumentation Parameters	13 14 15 15 16
0.0.2	Instrumentation Ghange Request Flocess	10

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page iii of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

6.6 6.7 6.7.1 6.8 6.8.1	Data Analysis Plan (Figure 2 Ref 8) Safety Review Board (Figure 2 Ref 9) SRB Timing and Reconvene Process Other Test Planning Activities First Flight Readiness Review	16 17 18 18 18
6.8.2	Test Readiness Review	18
7.0	PHASE III: CONFIGURATION CONTROL (FIGURE 2 REF 10)	19
7.1 7.2 7.2.1 7.2.2 7.2.3 7.2.4 7.3 7.4 7.5 7.5.1 7.6 7.6.1 7.6.1.1 7.6.1.2 7.7	Production Changes (Figure 2 Ref 11) Parts management (Figure 2 Ref 12) Shipping & Receiving Parts in Flight Test Stock Material Conformed Material Non-Stock Material Instrumentation Design (Figure 2 Ref 13) Modification Package (Figure 2 Ref 14) Production Work Orders (Figure 2 Ref 15) Configuration Change Effect Process Flight Test Work Order (FTWA) (Figure 2 Ref 16) Hardware/Software Control Procedures. Supplier and Engineering Flight Release Flight Test Configuration Change. Coordinators Daily Plan (Figure 2 Ref 17)	19 22 23 23 23 23 23 23 23 24 25 26 27 27 27 28 31
8.0	PHASE IV: AIRPLANE MODIFICATION	31
8.1 8.2 8.3 8.4 8.5 8.6 8.7 8.7.1 8.7.2	Shift Turnover Coordination Meetings (Figure 2 Ref 18) Airplane Mechanical/Electrical/CMP (Figure 2 Ref 19-20) Instrumentation Installations (Figure 2 Ref 21) Weight and Balance (Figure 2 Ref 22) Removal and Installation Log (Figure 2 Ref 23) Return to Service Testing (Figure 2 Ref 24) Instrumentation and Airplane Pre-Flight Inspection / Flight Release (Figure 2 Ref 25) Data System Pre-Flight Aircraft Pre-Flight	 31 32 32 33 34 34 34 34 34 34 34
9.0	PHASE V: TEST EXECUTION	34
9.1 9.1.1 9.2 9.2.1 9.3	Test Cards (Figure 2 Ref 26) Ground Run / Flight Numbering System Flight Card Deck Cover Sheets (Figure 2 Ref 27) Real Time Data Analysis (Figure 4 Ref 28)	34 35 36 36 37
9.4 9.4.1 9.4.2 9.5	Test Flight Briefing (Figure 4 Ref 29) FTE Crew Qualifications Minimum Crew Flight Test Execution (Figure 2 Ref 30)	37 38 38 39
9.5.1 9.6 9.6.1 9.6.2	Real Time Telemetry Room Protocol Post – Flight Debrief (Figure 2 Ref 31) Maintenance Squawks vs Engineering Issues Post-Flight Inspection	39 41 41 43
9.7	FIE Flight Reports	43

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page iv of 82

ł

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

9.7.1 Rej 9.7.2 Flig	porting of Accident and Incidents during Flight Test Execution ht Test Issue Notification Report	43 44
10.0 PHAS	E VI: TRACKING	. 44
10.1 Flight	Records	. 44
10.2 Flight	Logs (Figure 2 Ref 32)	45
10.3 Test F	oint Status (Figure 2 Ref 33)	45
10.4 Data	Approval (Figure 2 Ref 34)	45
11.0 PHAS	E VII: ANALYSIS, REPORTING, CLOSEOUT	45
11.1 Flight	Data Release (Figure 2 Ref 36)	45
11.2 Data \	/alidation	46
11.3 Data /	Analysis	46
11.4 Flight	Test Report (Figure 2 Ref 35)	47
11.5 Data \$	Storage, Management and Retention	47
11.6 Airpla	ne De-Modification (Figure 2 Ref 37)	47
APPENDIX A	FLIGHT TEST FORMS	. 48
Appendix A.1	Request for Flight Test Services (RFTS) FORM	. 48
Appendix A.2	Test Safety Hazard Analysis (THSA) FORM	. 49
Appendix A.3	Interim Flight Restriction (IFR) Form	50
Appendix A.4	Flight Test Cards	51
Appendix A.5	Example Incident Report	53
Appendix A.6	Flight Test Plan Template	. 54
Appendix A.7	Flight Test Report Template	. 63
Appendix A.8	Hazard Classification Guide	. 71
Appendix A.9	Flight Test Briefing and De-Briefing Guide	. 74
Appendix A.10	FAA MOU Flight Test Safety & Risk Assessment	. / 5
Appendix A.11	Veight and Balance Forms	. 19
Appendix A.12		. 02

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page I of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

LIST OF FIGURES

Figure 1 Flight Test Organization	3	3
Figure 2 Flight Test Process Overview	9)
Figure 3 RFTS Process Flow	10)
Figure 4 IFR Flow Process	12	2
Figure 5 Subjective risk assessment	14	ł
Figure 6 PLM dashboard	15	;
Figure 7 Gulfstream Intranet Top-Level Menu Selection	20)
Figure 8 Gulfstream Intranet Solumina Level Menu Selection	20)
Figure 9 Cognos Report Directory Screen	21	l
Figure 10 Open Work Spreadsheet Order Screen Shot	22	2
Figure 11 Modification Package Spreadsheet Screen Shot	24	ŀ
Figure 12 Deferred Work Order Operation Burn Down	25	,
Figure 13 Soumina Work Order Screen Shot	26	;
Figure 14 ECR Database Screen Shot	27	ţ
Figure 15 Hardware / software control process	30)
Figure 16 Coordinators Daily Plan Screen Shot	31	F
Figure 17 Engineering PR Teamtrack screenshot	42	!
Figure 18 Corporate Policies for Accident / Incident Response	43	į
Figure 19 GVI Data System Overview	46	į
Figure 20 Request for Flight Test Services (RFTS) Form Example	48	;
Figure 21 Test Safety Hazard Analysis Example	49	J
Figure 22 Interim Flight Restriction Example	50	ł
Figure 23 Flight Test Cards Example	51	
Figure 24 Flight Test Card Cover Sheet Example	52)
Figure 25 Incident Report Example	53	,
Figure 26 General Flight Test Plan Template Example	55	i
Figure 27 General Flight Test Plan Template Instrumentation Parameters list	61	
Figure 28 General Flight Test Plan Template test point table exampe	62	!
Figure 29 General Flight Test Report Template Example	64	•
Figure 30 W&B Form A	79	ļ
Figure 31 W&B Form C	80	ł
Figure 32 W&B Form D	81	

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 2 of 82

1.0 PURPOSE

1.1 Scope

The mission of Flight Test is to provide data products to our customers at the highest standards of safety and efficiency. This requires a comprehensive set of processes spanning from requirements planning, through test article preparations, test conduct and reporting. The disciplined adherence to these processes along with those applicable processes outlined within the Gulfstream Corporate Policies and Flight Operations Manuals is the foundation for maintaining safety within flight test operations.

1.2 Intent

This manual is intended to provide the standard procedures to be used by Flight Test personnel to ensure the safe and efficient conduct of flight tests at Gulfstream. It is also intended that this manual be reviewed annually and updated as necessary to incorporate best practices and lessons learned. This document also defines the Gulfstream procedures accepted by the FAA as sufficient to establish an adequate level of safety for FAA flight test programs (Ref FAA MoU, Appendix A.10).

2.0 ORGANIZATION AND AUTHORITIES

2.1 Flight Test Organization

The Flight Test Organization is accountable to the Vice President of Engineering. Both the V.P. of Engineering and the V.P. of Flight Operations are accountable to the Senior V.P. of Programs, Engineering, and Test, who is in turn accountable to the President of Gulfstream. It is therefore the responsibility of these leadership roles to implement corporate aviation safety policy set by the President. Safety policy implementation with Flight Test is discussed throughout this document.

The Flight Test Organization is comprised of four areas responsible to the Director, Flight Test (ref Figure 1). Departmental Leaders for each area are responsible for ensuring:

- An adequately trained staff is maintained to support all flight test programs
- Inter-departmental processes are established, utilized and kept current to incorporate best practices and lessons learned
- Operations are conducted in accordance with Gulfstream standards established in this document

NOTE: Chief Engineering Position is shown on Flight Test Organizational Chart for reference only and is not a part of the Flight Test organization. The Chief Engineer is accountable to Program Manager and is responsible for all Engineering data. Flight Test provides a staff representative to each major program.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 3 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL



FIGURE 1 – FLIGHT TEST ORGANIZATION

2.2 Governing Authority

This manual governs the processes to be used by Flight Test Personnel. Additional information can be found in:

- Safety Management System Flight Operations
- Safety Management System Flight Test
- First Flight Readiness Reviews Corporate Policy 14-15
- FTE Standard Operating Procedures (FT-SOP-003)
- FTIE Standard Operating Procedures (FT-SOP-004)
- FAA Order 4040.26A "Aircraft Certification Service Flight Safety Program"
- Repair Station Manual G02R813X
- FAA Partnership for Safety Plan III
- FAA Memorandum of Understanding, Risk Management (Rev A, 8/2/08)
- ODA Manual

3.0 ROLES AND RESPONSIBILITIES

Roles within Flight Test are varied and responsibility is assumed within the role description. For cases where a person fulfilling the role is absence from the office, that person will find a suitable delegate to perform the role in his absence. Email notification will go out to his direct reports and key colleagues of the stand-in responsible person, limit of authority, and length if time the delegation is planned for.

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 4 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

3.1 Chief Flight Test Engineer

Gulfstream

The Chief FTE is a senior technical position reporting to the Director of Flight Test. This position provides mentoring of FTEs and technical expertise in all phases of flight testing. This includes representing Flight Test with outside agencies (i.e. Domestic and Foreign Certification Authorities), maintaining industry contacts and serving on technical committees. The Chief Flight Test Engineer also continually evaluates new technology and methods for opportunities to introduce continued improvements to the Flight Test process.

3.2 Flight Test Engineering (D343)

This department is responsible for a multi-disciplined staff of engineers and specialists responsible for the planning, test conduct, data processing, analysis and results reporting. Specific roles and responsibilities within this department are described in the following sections.

3.2.1 Flight Test Engineer (FTE)

The Flight Test Engineers are responsible for tests associated with flight sciences (aerodynamic performance, stability and control, loads and dynamics, acoustics) systems, powerplant and propulsion and avionics. Major responsibilities include:

- Establishing all test requirements and test plans
- Defining instrumentation requirements and submitting to FTIE.
- Establishing analysis methods and data reduction plans
- Performing risk assessments and test safety analyses
- · Preparing detailed test cards, conducting mission briefings and real-time test support
- Issuing Flight Reports and maintaining test aircraft records
- · Performing post test data reduction, analysis, and generating test results report

3.2.2 Data System Specialist

The Data System Specialists are responsible for providing necessary tools, software databases, applications and storage methods to enable processing, delivering and storing all types of acquired data. While the majority of data center efforts are on-site, capability for remote-site support is also required. Major responsibilities include:

- Database design and development for processing and storing data
- Data reduction / analysis tools
- Data format conversion tools
- Data transfer, storage, back-up and archiving
- Interface with vendors and other organizations external to Flight Test to fulfill their requirements for Flight Test information
- Troubleshooting data system hardware and software

3.3 Flight Test Instrumentation Engineering

These departments contain a multi-disciplined staff of engineers and specialists responsible for the definition, development, design, installation, and operation of instrumentation, data acquisition and specialized test equipment. Specific roles and responsibilities within this department are described in the following sections:

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 5 of 82

Flight Test

3.3.1 Instrumentation Operations Engineer (D345)

fstream

The Operations Engineers define instrumentation and data acquisition systems as well as other unique modifications to satisfy requirements defined by Flight Test Engineering. Major responsibilities for these engineers include:

- Selecting sensors and performing accuracy / response analysis
- Establishing calibration methods and procedures
- Developing data systems and providing large-scale or miniature quick-response data systems based on program scope
- Maintaining all data system components to ensure proper operation and airworthiness
- Maintaining instrumentation calibrations, measurement lists and configuration control per internal and regulatory requirements
- Providing electrical designs to support instrumentation, data acquisition and special test installations
- Providing preflight and post flight checks for flight test instrumentation and systems
- · Supporting in-flight, ground test and remote operations as required

3.3.2 Instrumentation Mechanical Designer (D348)

Mechanical design personnel create engineering models, released thru approved work methods, for flight test installations. This function includes the following tasks:

- Provide designs that incorporate structural, aerodynamic or systems modifications to test aircraft for the installation of transducers, data system components, and specialized test equipment
- Release designs that have been approved by Stress and other cognizant Engineering groups to ensure airworthy and effective installations
- Provide support and technical guidance for part fabrication and installation of hardware on test aircraft.
- Resolve installation and fabrication problems due to design deficiencies or workmanship issues
- Disposition aircraft installation discrepancies and work with MRB and Stress Engineering to obtain repair resolution.

3.3.3 Instrumentation Technicians

Instrumentation Technicians perform the build-up, integration, installation and maintenance for instrumentation, data systems and special flight test systems. This includes:

- Off aircraft fabrication and assembly of mechanical and electrical components and assemblies
- Maintaining dedicated lab with proper equipment to calibrate a variety of sensor types
- On-aircraft installations, calibrations and on-going maintenance of the flight test instrumentation and special test installations.
- Preflight and post-fight checks for the flight test instrumentation and systems
- Support local and remote site test operations

lfstream

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 6 of 82

Flight Test

3.4 Flight Test Coordination and Operations (D346)

This department is responsible for coordinating the flight test activities with internal flight test personnel and external Gulfstream personnel, suppliers and regulatory agencies. This includes responsibilities for establishing test program plans along with short-term and long-term aircraft schedules. A staff of test coordinators shall be maintained who are responsible for proper planning, coordination and integration of all activities required to support an aircraft's scheduled test operations.

Aircraft Coordinator 3.4.1

The Aircraft Coordinator is responsible for directing and coordinating the short-term and long-term activities for a given test aircraft. Major responsibilities include:

- Scheduling tests to be done, including preparation for off-site tests.
- Preparation and maintenance of the daily and weekly schedules
- Publication of the Daily Status Report. .
- Maintaining and developing aircraft weight/balance sheets, configuration statements, and test . area requirements.
- Establishing and maintaining aircraft configuration control.
- Notifying Flight Operations of pilot requirements.
- Sole responsibility for the generation and maintenance of the FTWA database (except for instrumentation FTWAs with are authored by FTIEs)
- Coordinating daily maintenance activity at the turnover meetings, relative to the upcoming tests to be performed

3.4.2 Flight Test Operational Support

Within the Flight Test Coordination and Operations group, the support function is responsible for maintaining surveillance of open work orders against each flight test airplane as discussed in Section 7. This includes:

- Managing the content of the flight test aircrafts' open work Excel file databases to support aircraft conformity assurance
- Providing technical support assistance (Solumina, Excel, Cognos), and logistics to support aircraft configuration and conformity
- Maintain FTWA, R&I, Flight Log, and other status tracking tools for the department

Flight Test Maintenance 3.5

This multi-department organization is responsible for the maintenance, modifications and repairs across a multi-aircraft-model test fleet. This includes:

- Scheduled and Unscheduled Maintenance
- . Installation of production configuration changes
- Installation of prototype systems
- Installation of specialized flight test systems and equipment.

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 7 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

All maintenance operations shall be conducted in a manner that adheres to internal Gulfstream requirements and repair station manual. Maintenance operations shall be provided to support test program objectives, to include 24 hour / 7 day support. Internal programs shall be maintained for:

- Foreign Object Damage (FOD) Control (Ref CP 12-2)
- Tool Control (Ref CP 4-1, 4-6, 4-8)

fstream

- Employee Health & Safety (Ref CP-12)
- Maintenance Qualification Training to ensure appropriately qualified maintenance personnel are available to support operations on all shifts.

While the internal resources within the Flight Test Maintenance are contained within the following two departments, collaboration and coordination with certain Other Support Functions (Section 3.6) is required to properly maintain and operate the test fleet.

- Mechanics, Avionics / Electricians and Fabricators (D968)
- Material (D698) for the planning, inventory and control of non-stock purchased and fabricated parts

3.6 Other Support Functions

3.6.1 Product Development Team Leads

This position reports directly to the Chief Engineer for New Product Development Programs. This role provides direct reporting relationship to the Chief Engineer for all aspects of the Flight Test Program and is responsible to coordinate and prioritize all work between Flight Test and the NPD Engineering Organization.

3.6.2 Aviation Safety Office Monitor

The Aviation Safety Office (AVSO) is responsible to monitor compliance with established standard practices and Safety Management System (SMS) requirements. AVSO will periodically audit test cards, briefings, debriefings, installation work, and conformity inspections and ensure that safety requirements are complied with at all times. Additionally, the AVSO is to act as Ombudsman on safety issues between members of the Flight Test department and company Senior Management. Although Gulfstream has a clear non-retribution policy with regard to raising safety issues, if an individual feels that the concern raised is not being addressed by the supervisor chain of command, they are free to discuss the issue with the Safety Office who will conduct an investigation independent of the functional management organization.

3.6.3 Quality (D634)

The Flight Test Quality organization is responsible to ensure that all modifications and maintenance activities comply with documented requirements, as well as to complete daily inspections in preparation for and issuance of flight release of all Flight Test aircraft whether managed under the repair station or the manufacturer's authority based on program PSCP guidelines. These duties include:

- Initiating and verifying the accuracy of discrepancy tags (DR/DIs) in the discrepancy tracking database (currently Solumina for Production and Flight Test)
- Inspecting and accepting the completed work order operations/steps of engineering release work
 orders (blueprint changes approved from an ECR), re-work orders (needed corrections/fixes found
 from inspection or from flight crew), and Flight Test Work Authorizations (configuration control for
 changes made to flight test equipment, flight test instrumentation, flight test systems, and flight test
 components)
- Verifying R&I log and CMP card(s) accuracy

Flight Test

fstream

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 8 of 82

 Maintaining individual aircraft airworthiness records, including 8130 tags, certifications of conformance etc.

In addition, Quality Assurance is responsible for preparing and presenting the aircraft to the ODA Inspection Airworthiness Representatives (IARs) for the issuance of conformity or airworthiness certificates for aircraft assigned to Flight Test. The ODA IAR's are also members of the Quality organization.

3.6.4 Materials (D913)

The Materials organization provides support to Flight Test to manage stock material (aircraft production parts). This includes planning, logistics and control support for the flight test inventory of production spares, parts borrowed from Production, parts upgrades, maintaining current list of parts shortages, expediting shipping and receiving and maintaining inventory control.

3.6.5 Material Review Board

MRB is a group of engineering representatives empowered to review all reported airplane discrepancies (DRDIs) and develop authoritative resolution instructions.

3.6.6 Flight Operations (D926)

Flight Operations is responsible for providing all the test pilots for any Flight Test flight as well as any other necessary cockpit crew.

4.0 FLIGHT TEST PROCESS

Gulfstream flight testing is a multi-dimensional process illustrated at a top level in Figure 2. The process is a set of comprehensive procedures, reviews, data products, and cross checks which taken together, effectively manages the inherent risk associated with Flight Test operations. The process ensures that flight missions meet the following criteria:

- 1. Aircraft level test data is required to support Program, Engineering and Test Organizational objectives
- 2. The data required is optimized to support Engineering's development efforts and/or to show or find compliance with Regulations
- 3. Procedures and methods required to gather the data have been evaluated to include appropriate risk analysis and any appropriate mitigation steps determined
- 4. Test mission planning has been planned and organized in an appropriate build-up fashion
- 5. The mission has been crewed by trained, qualified individuals familiar with techniques and maneuvers being used as well as how to operate the airplanes flight and safety systems
- 6. Test aircraft are appropriately modified, maintained and configured to include any specialized safety equipment.
- 7. The test missions are executed in a disciplined manner with objective success and discontinuance criteria
- 8. Progressive results are understood, reported to the team, and considered as part of the evaluation process for follow-on missions.

The top level process diagram is illustrated in Figure 2 as a seven phase process starting at requirements definition and ending with data archival and project closure. Arrows indicate normal pathways of data and sequence flow. Each element of the process will be defined in the following sections of this document. Each of those sections contains a reference to the block number of the Flight Test Process in the section heading.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 9 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL



FIGURE 2 - FLIGHT TEST PROCESS OVERVIEW

5.0 PHASE 1: REQUESTS & SCHEDULING

All flight tests require authorization from appropriate engineering or program management. During or after the authorization process, schedules are prepared based on the scope of testing requested and an understanding of the requirements and lead-times to properly plan, prepare and configure the test aircraft, conduct the test and provide the results.

5.1 Authorization

For major product development programs, flight tests are authorized by the Program Office through a Program Directive. For other test programs, flight tests are authorized by appropriate Management personnel through the Request for Flight Test Services process outlined in Section 5.2.

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 10 of 82

Flight Test

i ngni resi

Gulfstream

5.2 Product Development Programs

For product development programs, the scope of the flight test program is determined based on an understanding of the configuration and the test requirements for development, company and certification tests. Comprehensive program schedules are established for the test aircraft thru coordination with Engineering and the Program Office.

Flight Test Engineering generates flight test plans documenting the test requirements and obtains the appropriate technical input and approval from the cognizant engineering personnel as outlined in Section 6.1.

Once the test program scope is established, then additional tests are authorized and scheduled using the Request for Flight Test Services Process outlined in Section 5.3.

5.3 Non-Product Development Programs

For test projects not authorized through a Program Directive, or tests that exceed the original scope during Product Development Programs, a Request for Flight Test Services form is written, approved and submitted to Flight Test. This form should contain the appropriate background to document the purpose of the test, along with other relevant information to define the test requirements to the extent tests can be conducted or support generation of a Flight Test Plan.

After receipt of an approved RFTS, an internal tracking number is assigned by Flight Test Operations and Coordination team and scheduled for a test aircraft. A log shall be maintained and kept current for all RFTS projects. The flow chart for the RFTS process is shown in Figure 3.

The RFTS form and instructions can by downloaded from the corporate intranet at:

A log shall be maintained and kept current for all RFTS projects. Current log can be found in the following

The flow chart for the processing of RFTS jobs is shown in Figure 3



FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 11 of 82

Flight Test

6.0 PHASE II: PLANNING

fstream

Planning phase activities are primarily performed by Flight Test Operations and Coordination personnel with contributions from other groups within and outside of Flight Test. Regardless of whether the requirement originates from RFTS or in support of a Product Development Program, the same structured planning process is required: requirements are analyzed, instrumentation & configuration are defined and aircraft test schedules are established. The output of this phase of the process may include an approved, released Test Plan in the case of large complex test program, or at a minimum an approved test point table, risk assessment, appropriate flight restrictions, parameter list, and data analysis plan if appropriate.

6.1 Test Plan (Figure 2 Ref 3)

Flight Test Plans are a primary deliverable of the Flight Test Engineering department and used to define the following elements of a test:

- Test Objective
- Company and/or Regulatory Requirements
- Test Conditions & Procedures
- Instrumentation Requirements
- Risk Assessment

To ensure that proper planning and coordination has been completed, test plans are approved thru Flight Test Engineering, Flight Operations and the appropriate cognizant Engineering group. An approved flight test plan is required before conducting test points during a test mission.

The title of the document should indicate the type of test plan (Development, Company or Certification) and shall be numbered sequentially through the Flight Test database system. The document number should indicate the model type (GVI-FT-XXX, GV-FT-XXX) where XXX is a sequential document number from the tracking database). Content of the test plan should follow the organization of the standard Test Plan template. Details of preparing a Flight Test Plan are contained in Flight Test Engineering FT-SOP-003 and a standard template format can be found in Appendix A.

6.2 Interim Flight Restriction (Figure 2 Ref 4)

6.2.1 IFR Purpose

Interim Flight Restrictions are temporary limitations issued by the Engineering group that are over and above AFM flight restrictions that must be strictly followed to ensure safe operation of the airplane. These restrictions are most often associated with early stage flight testing of new development aircraft programs. IFRs can be generated as a result of the following types of issues:

- (a) Known aircraft hardware and/or software problems.
- (b) Incomplete laboratory or development testing.
- (c) First flight envelope/Restricted flight envelope.
- (d) Defined limitations for specific operations (usually outside standard aircraft limitations).
- (e) Measure of conservatism (safety enhancement).

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 12 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

6.2.2 IFR Process

Fulfstream

IFRs are normally created by Engineering, (e.g., Flight Sciences, Systems) and issued using a form similar to that located in Appendix A. The IFR contains the restriction, the basis for the restriction, the clearance action required to lift the restriction and the affected flight test aircraft. The IFR is approved by the originator, Flight Test Engineering, Flight Operations and the Program's Chief Engineer. Original signature copies are forwarded to Flight Test where a Log is maintained and the IFRs distributed to all personnel involved in executing test missions. They are included in the flight decks for each aircraft mission and briefed during the preflight. See IFR Flow Process in Figure 4 below.

IFRs remain in effect until formally cancelled. Cancellation is performed when all required action items for all affected aircraft are completed and additional cancellation concurrence signatures are added to the original. At the Type Certification milestone in a program, all IFRs should be closed or transferred into the AFM as a permanent item.

IFRs are included the test card package and briefed prior to flight. Compliance with IFRs is mandatory and specific wavers to exceed the IFRs for specific test purposes must be received from Chief Engineer via IOM or email and included in the Test Card package. For the GVI program, the IFRs are stored in the following network directory location:



FIGURE 4- IFR FLOW PROCESS

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 13 of 82

6.3 Flight Test Risk Assessment/Risk Alleviation (Figure 2 Ref 5)

fstream

Flight Test

The Flight Test risk assessment is an essential element of insuring an acceptable level of risk is maintained during flight test operations. While the flight test risk assessment process outlined in this section mitigates risk for specific tests, to maintain the highest standards of safety involves a never-ending focus and disciplined adherence to the overall test process by everyone involved in the test program. It is the responsibility for all involved in the test program to identify and respond to safety-related issues at any time. These issues should be elevated to the appropriate management member and if necessary or preferred for priority or anonymity, the Gulfstream Aviation Safety Office (Ref Section 3.6.2)

The Flight Test risk assessment process starts with determining for each test point, the associated hazards along with the causes and effects. Guidance for hazard assessments and tests typically considered hazardous are provided Appendix A. In addition to internal Gulfstream expertise and experience, useful external sources such as FAA Order 4040.26A and the Flight Test Safety Committee should be consulted. Additionally, previous Gulfstream program Flight Test risk assessments are considered as a starting point and modified for differences in a new aircraft type and system level Fault Hazard Assessment (FHA) and System Safety Assessment (SSA) are good reference documents for analyzing Flight Test risk.

Per FAA Order 4040.26A, the following Hazard categories have been defined:

- Catastrophic Loss of personnel and/or aircraft
- Hazardous Major damage to aircraft and/or serious injury to personnel
- Major Extreme crew workload conditions, damage to aircraft or minor personnel injury
- Minor Excessive crew workload conditions

Probability categories are also defined within FAA Order 4040.26A from High to Improbable. There is no quantitative definition related to these categories, a subjective judgment will be made relative to the given test being analyzed. Once the hazard category and probability of occurrence is established, the overall risk classification is determined using Figure 5. These risk classifications are defined in FAA Order 4040.26A as follows:

- AVOID represents risk that is unacceptable for flight testing and needs to be addressed by other means such as simulation. This is often the case for system failure response and is primarily driven by System Safety Assessments by Engineering
- HIGH Test or activities which present a significant risk to personnel, equipment, or property, even after all precaution measures have been taken.
- MEDIUM Test or activities which present a greater risk to personnel, equipment, or property than normal operations.
- LOW Test or activities which present no greater risk to personnel, equipment, or property than normal operations. No Safety Review Board is required.

Generally speaking, Test Hazard Analysis is required (Ref. 6.3.1) along with Flight Test Safety Review Board (Ref. 6.7) will be required for all Medium and High risk tests. Limited exceptions to this requirement are covered in section 6.7.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 14 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL



Probability of Occurance

FIGURE 5- SUBJECTIVE RISK ASSESSMENT

6.3.1 Test Safety Hazard Analysis (TSHA)

For those tests that are not classified as low risk, a test safety hazard analysis is required. The cognizant FTE, in coordination with the test pilot, is responsible for developing the TSHA and informing the SRB chairman(s) of the requirement to convene a FT SRB.

The Test Safety Hazard Analysis (TSHA) utilizes the information from the Risk Assessment above and defines the necessary mitigation to achieve an acceptable level of risk. The TSHA is approved through the FTE and Flight Operations Organizations.

An example of a TSHA is included in Appendix A.

The following elements should be used in preparation of Test Safety Hazard Analysis:

Hazard - A short description of the envisioned dangerous condition

Cause - Key instigating factors leading to the envisioned dangerous condition

Effect - Resulting outcome if the hazard is encountered during the test

Preventative Actions / Minimizing Procedures – List all reasonable steps that can be taken to avoid the condition or reduce its probability of occurrence and establish appropriate constraints that will provide the most optimum conditions for recovery if the event does occur.

Corrective Techniques – Define pilot actions to perform to recover from the hazard

TSHA control and approval is as follows: TSHAs control numbers will be issued by Flight Test administrative personnel. The document will be prepared and signed by the cognizant FTE and reviewed and signed by the

Flight Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 15 of 82

Pilot (project pilot or pilot singed to fly the mission, the FTE conducting the test, and the Flight Test Manager or Director. Original signed copies will be stored in Flight Test records retention area, and PDF copies placed on the common network drive folder. The example shown below is GVI storage folder.

THSA revisions are sometimes required. Revision actions are usually initiated from SRB review. However, if a revision action is initiated from new information coming to light, the need for SRB reconvene will be governed by section 6.7.1. A new copy with the same control number will be prepared with new original signatures.

6.4 Test Point Table (Figure 2 Ref 6)

The Test Point Table contained in the Flight Test Plan defines the type of maneuver required, flight condition, airplane configuration, and process steps for how the maneuver is to be performed by the flight crew. Test points can be categorized into groups of similar types, assigned identification numbers, and input into tracking databases. Pre-requisite test points for a given test block will be identified as appropriate. For example, Field Performance testing will be preceded by aerodynamic stall testing, stall barrier development, brakes development etc. Test point tables are documented in the applicable Flight Test Plan. Test point, including conservative build up to higher risk maneuvers, are defined in the test point table. The initial test points will follow previous program precedence in terms of steps, flight conditions etc. Individual test points go through a review and approval as part of the Flight Test Plan review process.

The tool currently being used by Gulfstream Flight Test to manage test points on the GVI program is FTMS which runs inside of the Smarteam database application. This application is launched from the PLM dashboard.

😚 Gulfstream PLM Dashboard v4.2 - R19	
T ^{-Initial Phase}	
LDA VPM.Nav GATIA PDocM SmarTeam	Autocad
Applications Humming: Smart eam	Heset Hum Maxhboard

FIGURE 6-PLM DASHBOARD

An overview of how to utilize Smarteam to create and populate test point tables into a common project database is located in the following network directory:

6.5 Instrumentation Requirements Definition (Figure 2 Ref 7)

Instrumentation parameter lists are a key input from the Phase II Planning to the Phase III Configuration Control and must be defined and delivered sufficiently in advance to allow for design, procurement and installation activities to be completed. For major development programs requiring heavy design work, an initial list should be delivered to the FTIE group 12 to 18 months in advance of the first flight of the aircraft. The initial list shall define all analog measurements and identify all aircraft data busses that will require monitoring. The project PDT lead will be responsible for coordinating the definition of these requirements in partnership with FTEs and the design engineering organization. The communication of the requirements will be documented via Inter Office Memorandum (IOM). The contents of the table in the parameter list are



Flight Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 16 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

presented in Appendix B of the example Test Plan (Appendix A). The key information to convey is the measurement location, type, units, accuracy, ranges etc. Also if the parameter will be used for Safety Of Flight monitoring, this needs to be identified on the list.

Special instrumentation requirements that are not defined in the parameter list shall be provided by FTE and documented via IOM 12 to 18 months in advance of the first flight of the aircraft. These requirements include unique flight test installations to support the test program such as stall recovery parachutes, flutter exciters, differential GPS, etc.

6.5.1 Critical Flight Instrumentation Parameters

Specific instrumentation parameters that will be utilized for critical flight monitoring will be specifically identified in the Test Plan. These parameters will be reviewed by the SRB (Section 6.7) along with personnel assignments for monitoring via TM or on-board. These parameters fall into three categories:

<u>Safety of Flight (SOF)</u> parameter is one that is required to be monitored throughout the entire flight, regardless of the mission. The SOF parameter is used to alert the flight crew to a potential unsafe condition. If the ability to monitor a SOF parameter is lost, the testing will be required to be halted and the aircraft immediately returned to base. Loss of the ability to monitor a SOF parameter may also require specific limitations or procedures for the duration of the flight until the aircraft has landed. SOF parameters must identify aircraft effectivity, as all parameters may not be applicable to each test aircraft, i.e. Stall Recover Parachute system status. SOF parameters will be monitored either in TM or onboard the aircraft and will be reviewed by the SRB (Section 6.7)

<u>Safety of Test (SOT)</u> parameter is one that is required to be monitored throughout a specific test, to alert the flight crew to a potential unsafe condition. An example would be in-ground effect angle of attack calculated limit during field performance testing. Loss of a SOT parameter and any alternate measurement will require a Return to Base (RTB), or proceeding with alternate, pre-briefed tests not requiring the failed parameter.

<u>Maneuver Quality</u> parameter is required for either real-time or post-flight analysis and is essential to determining the success of a particular test point. An example would be electrical bus loading current measurements in electrical system testing. Loss of a Maneuver Quality parameter and any alternate measurement will require a Return to Base (RTB), or proceeding with alternate, pre-briefed tests not requiring the failed parameter.

6.5.2 Instrumentation Change Request Process

After the Instrumentation Parameter List is issued, changes will be managed through Instrumentation Change Request forms (ICR). This form is required by the FTIE group to manage incoming additional and changed requirements so they can be managed to support the proper airplane and test schedule. FTEs are responsible for the generation of all ICRs.

The format used for the GVI program is stored in the following network directory location:

6.6 Data Analysis Plan (Figure 2 Ref 8)

The data analysis plan is a document that is needed to establish a protocol of how lower level measurements are transformed into higher level data used for showing compliance or providing inputs to Engineering which are used to produce the final data. An example is GVI-FT-003 "Model GVI Data Analysis Methods". This document contains the agreed upon equations for processing air data (both production and reference systems), Stall Speeds, Minimum Control Speeds, Takeoff and Landing Performance Data, Thrust Reverser Effectiveness, Cruise Fuel Flow and Drag, Buffet Boundary, Engine Powerplant Performance, Flying Qualities, Component Cooling and Pneumatic Systems data. The document is produced by Flight Test and concurred with by Flight Sciences who is the primary customer of Flight Test data.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 17 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

6.7 Safety Review Board (Figure 2 Ref 9)

The Flight Test Safety Review Board (FT SRB) is an inter-disciplinary group of Management, Engineering, and Flight Operations personnel responsible for reviewing tests classified as Medium or High and concurring that the subject tests can be conducted as planned with the prescribed mitigation and the resulting level of risk is acceptable.

The membership of the Flight Test Safety Review Board shall be defined as:

- Engineering Management Member
- VP Flight Operations*
- Director of Flight Test*
- Project Chief Engineer
- Chief Test Pilot
- Senior Level FTE
- Director, Engineering
- Project Pilot
- Others as required

* In the event a board member is not available co-chairs determine if a quorum exists for the Board to convene. A quorum shall consist of representatives of Management plus Engineering, Flight Operations and Flight Test.

It is the responsibility of the cognizant Flight Test Engineer to inform the Co-Chairs that an SRB is required, who should attend to support the board members review and ensure it is scheduled at an appropriate time preceding the test schedule (see section 6.7.1). It is acceptable for the cognizant FTE to review previously held SRB content and if it appears that existing THSA coverage exists for a given test point, make the proposal to the co chairs for applicability. The co-chairs will determine if SRB will be required based upon existing TSHA coverage. In order to ensure an effective meeting is held, the content and material for the review should be kept to a reasonable timeframe. Meetings of approximately 2 hours should ensure the ability for participants to support the meeting effectively.

At the FT SRB, the cognizant FTE should present the relevant information to support the board's determination if the risk level is acceptable. This should consist of the following information

- Test Background
- Test Aircraft Configuration
- Test Conditions & Procedures
- Safety of Flight Monitoring Abort Limits & Procedures
- Test Sequence (Build-up, Pre-Requisites)
- Data Analysis Requirements (Pre-requisite analysis, interim data reviews)
- Risk Levels
- TSHAs (Hazards, Probabilities, Mitigation)

In preparing for an SRB, a list of the types of questions that may arise or should be considered are included in Appendix A.

If during the course of an SRB, action items are generated (chits), recording the consensus of the issue and required follow-up action. All closure actions for the respective tests must be completed prior to testing to the

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 18 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

satisfaction of the SRB. Meeting minutes documenting material reviewed, closed actions, and approved TSHAs will be issued and retained for historical and future reference. SRB must be unanimous on the opinion to safely proceed.

After an SRB is completed, it is the responsibility of the test crew to elevate to the SRB Co-Chairs any issues encountered during the test program that would constitute additional risk that was not previously reviewed as part of the original SRB.

6.7.1 SRB Timing and Reconvene Process

Typically, the SRB should be scheduled a minimum of 2 to 3 weeks in advance of testing in order to allow adequate time to close any actions that may be identified. Closed SRB actions and associated approved TSHAs are considered sufficient provided no additional hazards or unexpected conditions are encountered during testing and the information reviewed during the SRB used to approve the tests remain consistent.

The SRB should be reconvened if:

- A) Unexpected conditions are encountered that increase the hazards or probability
- B) Changes are introduced to the test configuration, procedure, or crew
- C) Start of testing is delayed significantly from the planned test start date (approximately 1 month)
- D) If planned testing is repeated later in a program (approximately 3 months)
- E) If testing is repeated on another program (ie, conducting TCAS encounters on a different software load)

For the purposes of conditions C through E where the SRB reconvene will review material already approved by the FT SRB, the SRB co-chairs shall determine the appropriate board participation.

NOTE UNDER NO CIRCUMSTANCE SHOULD SCHEDULE PRESSURES DICTATE THE ELIMINATION OR LIMITING THE FULL SCOPE OF THE RISK REVIEW PROCESS

6.8 Other Test Planning Activities

6.8.1 First Flight Readiness Review

First Flight Readiness Reviews (FFRRs) are required by corporate policy CP-14-15 to assure that all reasonable steps have been taken to establish airworthiness of a new aircraft type and that it is safe for its first flight and commencement of the flight test program. This formal review is required for at least the first 2 development vehicles of a new type, any test vehicle that has undergone a major modification or redesign, or any other reason deemed necessary by corporate management. Engineering and Program Management has primary responsibility for organizing these reviews.

6.8.2 Test Readiness Review

Test Readiness Reviews (TRRs) are internal Flight Test meetings held for major elements of a test program. TRRs are a team-wide review of the technical and operational aspects of a given test. The objective is to ensure satisfactory up-front planning and coordination are achieved to support the safe, accurate and efficient execution of a test will be achieved. These meetings are particularly useful for major offsite efforts where a high degree of logistic coordination is required with internal and external personnel plus establish a plan for transportation of people and equipment to the test site.

Gulfstream

fstream

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 19 of 82

Flight Test

7.0

PHASE III: CONFIGURATION CONTROL (FIGURE 2 REF 10)

The airplane Configuration Control phase of the Flight Test Process is intended to ensure that the airplane test article is configured in an airworthy state, installed with the necessary components to be tested, and equipped with the required safety equipment. This requires configuration control for both production and flight test installations.

The initial phases of the Configuration Control block consist of Production Changes (11), Parts Management (12), and Instrumentation Design (13). These 3 blocks of activity feed the production of an aircraft Modification Plan (14) that is aligned with the master testing schedule (2). The Modification Plan consists of lists of Production (15) and Flight Test (16) work orders identifiers. This plan is the "master to do list" for a given scheduled modification period. Items are selected off of the this list and identified on the Coordinators' Daily Plan (17) to communicate on a shift by shift basis what is to be accomplished by various airplane's work crews.

7.1 **Production Changes (Figure 2 Ref 11)**

Production configuration evolves throughout a major Flight Test program due to a variety of reasons. Engineering Change Requests (ECRs) and discrepancies are generated to address items such as Engineering errors, part qualification failure, Flight Test identified non-compliances, flight squawks, product improvements, manufacturing identified errors, and supplier guality escape issues. The methods and tools utilized to manage change in the midst of a flight test program also evolve over time but the same basic requirements remain from program to program.

For the GVI program, Gulfstream instituted a new Manufacturing Execution System (MES) called Solumina. This is a database application that allows for structured planning of production fabrication, assembly, and installation work plans along with appropriate Quality buyoff and inspection operations. The system keeps track of every step performed to build a GVI, by whom, when it was performed, and discrepancies and resolutions encountered in the process of implementation. Each work order or discrepancy is assigned a unique tracking number for each airplane tail number. Discrepancies in Solumina are known as DRDIs (Discrepancy Record/Discrepancy Item).

ECRs are initiated by Engineering with a defined effectivity. If the Test Fleet is affected, the incorporation date is established by reference to the Flight Test schedule. ECRs are approved by "Configuration Review Board" consisting of representatives of Program Management, Engineering, Manufacturing, Quality, Materials, and Flight Test. ECRs define how and when each change should be cut into the production flow and what TIA test would be affected. Flight Test maintains surveillance of these changes using an automated twice daily Cognos reports. Cognos is a database reporting tool which gueries the Solumina databases for added work orders affecting a given aircraft tail number. These reports can also be run on demand and are stored in the following network location:

Flight Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 20 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL



FIGURE 7- GULFSTREAM INTRANET TOP-LEVEL MENU SELECTION



FIGURE 8 - GULFSTREAM INTRANET SOLUMINA LEVEL MENU SELECTION

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 21 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

IBM Cop	phos Connection	69 H	R.▼ A.▼ i ▼ Launch ▼ ? ▼
() ()	Public Folders My Folders		••
Public Fold	ers > SolumPRD > Elight Test > FLIGHT TEST OPERATIONS		5 66 X 📭 📾 🗙 129 319
		Entries:	1 - 14 O
	Name Ø	Modified #	Actions
	6001 TJA REPORT	August 25, 2010 3:57:05 PM	More
	6002 TIA REPORT	February 25, 2010 11:20:28 AM	More
	6003 TIA REPORT	February 24, 2010 1:51:36 PM	More
	96003 OPEN WORK ORDER REPORT FOR STD	March 10, 2011 11:17:20 AM	More
	FLIGHT TEST AIRCRAFT DR/DI AM REPORT	August 18, 2010 3:05:10 PM	More
	FLIGHT TEST AIRCRAFT DR/DI PM REPORT	August 18, 2010 3:09:46 PM	More
3 G)	FIGHTSTESTIARCRAFILOPENIWORK/AMIREPORT	February 21, 2011 9:46:52 AM	More
<u> </u>	FLIGHTATESTLATRORAFTOPFNAWORKIPM REPORT	March 10, 2011 11:13:22 AM	More
	OPEN WORK ORDER REPORT WITH HEADER TEXT	November 18, 2010 2:43:23 PM	More
	REVISED FLIGHT TEST AIRCRAFT DR/DI AM REPORTS	June 28, 2011 4:02:03 PM	More
	SOL - DRDI WITH 60P27 PN - u307249	October 21, 2009 9:17:39 AM	T > E C More
	SOL - FT & FTWA OPEN WORK - U307249	September 15, 2011 9:31:04 AM	🚮 🕨 🖽 🖬 More
	SOL - HEADER TEXT OPEN WORK REPORT - U307249	November 18, 2010 2:40:15 PM	5 ► ES E More
	SOL - PENDING WORK ORDERS - U307249	March 5, 2010 11:02:01 AM	ST > ES Es More

FIGURE 9 - COGNOS REPORT DIRECTORY SCREEN

From these Cognos reports, a manually produced and managed Excel spreadsheet is maintained which keeps a running list of open production work orders against each airplane tail number (see section 7.5). These reports are kept in the following locations for each GVI aircraft.(SN 6001 as an example).

Figure 10 presents a excerpt of the Open Work spreadsheet for SN 6001 as an example. The criterion for adding work orders to the Open Work spreadsheet is a fully authored and released order originating from the following sources of work order authors: DME (GVI Production Planning), and FTO (Flight Test Planning). Work orders with plant codes of MEX, PRD, and others are considered "backshop" sub-assembly issues that are not relevant to a particular tail number and if a tail number is indicated, it is assumed that the work order did not get bought off properly when the component was transferred to DME and installed on the aircraft.

Column "O" and T in the spreadsheet are particularly important as it provides a code of when the work order is to be implemented on the aircraft, and if the answer is TIA, then what TIA # is applicable. For example of the 1053 open work orders against 6001 as of Sept. 15,2011. 804 are declared "C of A" meaning that compliance is required prior to the issuance of the standard C of A. The remaining 249 work orders have a compliance requirement of TIA, prior to TIA, or at a specified maintenance interval requiring compliance to be scheduled during the Flight Test program before the noted TIA.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 22 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

Statute and Later A.M.		S. 57.69	88 - C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C - C -	266526.2	的人们的 化合同的 化合同的 化合同的 化合同的	AT COMPANY	Sec. 1. March 1964		
Subgit [2] Window	e de la companya de l								
iz -	and the second				and the second	1. 32			그 석소는 것같은 가장했는 것 않는다.
A297 1+ 5	A0169227501	ne Steberst		,	e santistication perifici i dissettat		Parana ang Pang Pang Pang Pang Pang Pang Pa	elenen unteren ala elenen era annan des analisetten bandesen	ar ann ann an ann ann an ann ann an ann an a
A	D D	12:49		I N	0	P	1	Y	2
ORDER NUMBER	PARTNUMBER	DEL	eferral DRDI	nent	addressed prior to	impleme	TIA number 1	notes	instructions/details/flight restrictions/work des Ma
10. 38 C 10. 20	- The second second second	M	15 The second	flight	TIA er CofA (as	nted 📎	(in Solumina)	And the second second	No.
1 States of States	Augusta a terrar		8.20 m	da Maina	recorded in Solumina	TTA or			Pa
La contra c			i c	(Y/N)	f	KolA			- Bù
000002122.1	60823078514001	149.45	and the second se	der/nie in	Income LICY	(and the second	 Construction of the second seco
090028226.1	52-000PS		and an and a second		C of A or aMED patroff	COLO	WERE AS DAVIDED	Naad deferal 11	Repair pasting dyone plating on MED handle. This can be de
100009559-1	G60M59901P01			N	Corner and Contains	CofA	A STREET AND A STR	DEP accents on macher DPDI 1000	We Flectrical harness support bracket clashes with BAT cable sur
90-FI IGHT TEST INSTALLS	ET-G650-0001		in in a s		rolector		ristra produces a		COLLECTOR WORK ORDER currently anothe hud will be
A0136914401	G60M59901PD1		in in prise	N	C d A	COFA	california productional and and and a second s		FOR LEFTIDE WORK IN AN FOR DR /DI'S THAT SPECIFY R
A0136914401 FAT 01	G60W59901D01	-			COL		WOMEN CALCULATED A		COLLECTOR WORK IN AN FOR DR (DT'S THAT SPECIFY R
A0139438201-01	60P9714050A001			N	Innore MEX	-	AND DODDER		
A0139757401-01	60P9731361A003P01			N	Incore MEX	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1	CALCER STATE	ter and the second s	a torre and a state to the second interaction and the second second second second second second second second s
A0140201601-01	60P9711075A001			N	Konore MEX		Alexandra States		
A0143300701	60P5330001N010_G	990		N	CofA	1	1000 No. 100 NO. 100 NO.	in a second a second	
A0143300701	60P5330001N010 G	990	1997 - Carlos Carlos	N	COLA	1.1.1.1	ender ander solde de se		
A0143300701	60P5330001N010_G		The second s	N	Cof A		115 1438 1828		
A0143527401	G60M59901P02		÷	N	CofA	TIA	Anasserations		- COLLECTOR WORK PLAN FOR LIMITED OPS COMPONEN
A0143527401 FAT	G60M59901P02			N	CdA	TIA	Personal and the second second		COLLECTOR WORK PLAN FOR LIMITED OPS COMPONEN
A0144343201	60P5340001N012-R01P02 -		ning in a sec	N	CdA	COLA	VERNEWEDGER		fight test demod work: to be cancelled
A0144343201 FAI	60P5340001N012-R01P02 -		Ŕt. T	N	CdA.	CofA	1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1		fight test demod work: to be canceled
A0145136701	60P2515000N001 F			N	CITA	CofA	ALT WORL ADDRESS	a shi ta dha ta na sa shara a na an a	EER trav qual failure, new trav is required OK for flight testing
A0145138701 FAL	60P2515000N001 &		inter in the	N	COFA	CoFA	- AND TO CONSISTER OF	and the second	FER tray qual failure, new tray is required OK for flight testing
A0146225001	60P5320001N008-801P02 A -			N	CAFA	CofA	Carl Contraction of the	and the second	flight test demod work; to be canceled; see current work R05
A0146242501	60P2516000N001 E		intervente i con con	N	CdA	CofA	AND DESCRIPTION	4.34	FER tray qual failure, new tray is required OK for flight testing
A0146242501 FAT	160P2516000N001 #			N	CdA	CofA	3.3.5393396563		FER tray qual failure, new tray is required OK for flight testing
A0146310301	60P3610001N001P03			N	COLA	CofA	some rula ressue	 A set of the set of	DER says prior to first TIA (10): proof pressure test required
A0146310301 FAT	60P3610001N001P03	1	ه، منت در پزورشم	. N	CAA	CoFA	antha said		DER says prior to first TIA (10): proof pressure test recained
A0146897901	60P5340001N012-R01P01 -		n i i mininger spinister i i i i i i	N	CofA	CofA	A 730 A 74 7 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19 19		flight test demod work: to be cancelled: not a TIA rest immer
A0146897901 FAL	60P5340001N012-R01P01	1-1		N	CdA	CofA	1.00307.63900	ing a second	flight test demod work; to be cancelled; not a TIA requirement
A0148077401	60P3040300N001 #			N	CofA	CofA	And 26 (1814)	<u></u>	Requires water system hose assembly RE-ID: see current wo
A0148077401 FAT	60P3840300N001 8		1997 - S.	N	CdA	CofA	1000 26 Magazin		Requires water system hose assembly RE-ID: 'see current wo
A0149725901	60P3814100N001 D	ولنبل		N	CdA	TIA	26		Water tanks not installed on 6001, install for vacuum tollet ac
A0149725901 FAI	60P3814100N001 ()			N	CofA	TIA	45- 526 Jacks	the second s	Water tanks not installed on 6001, install for vacuum tollet ac
A0149727601	60P5394001N019_1			N.	CorA	CofA	NARSHI PERCENSIO	 A second sec second second sec	Wing to body fairing panel 16 structural rework required for in
A0149727601_FAL	60P5394001N019			N	COA	CofA	-		Wing to body fairing panel 16 structural rework required for a
A0150283401	AV-GVI-TS-600.0_A		1982	N	COTA	TIA	1. m 25A		Rewire PA Amp and security system wiring re-do test special
A0150283401_FAI	AV-GVI-TS-600.0_A		2	N	CofA	TIA	25A	4	Rewire PA Amp and security system wining re-do test spec bu
A0150824201	60P2797651A001L01			N	Ignore MEX		Sector Sector	the state of a second	
A0150624201_FAI	60P2797651A091L01				Ignore MEX		2772962702		
A0151813101	60P5394001N035_C	1	1997 - S	N	CdA	TIA	26	la prime e service de la companya de	wing to body Fairing panel 16 structural rework required for in
A0151813101 FAL	60P5394001N035_C		in the second	N	CofA	TIA	20 26	a service and the service of the ser	wing to body fairing panel 16 structural rework required for in
A0151813401	60P3429001N001_D			N	COFA	CofA	S Den Wertstein		EVS II support brackat required
A0151813401 FAL	60P3429001N001_D			N	ColA	CofA	1.5 1.2 1. 1. 1.		EV5 II support bracket required
A0152081801	60P3404000N001_0			N	CofA	CofA	A.C. March Black		install weather radar after nose boom is removed
A0152061801 FAL	60P3404000N001_D			N	CofA	CofA	484,00048.954	a particular de la composición de la c	install weather radar after nose boom is removed
10150001001	60934290000001 #			N	CofA	COFA	USAN KORTHARD		EVS II support bracket required (is related to work order A01)

FIGURE 10 - OPEN WORK SPREADSHEET ORDER SCREEN SHOT

7.2 Parts management (Figure 2 Ref 12)

Parts are received into the Flight Test "plant" using the same Material Inventory Control system that Production uses. Parts are delivered with Safety of Flight documentation in terms of a Certification of Conformity, an FAA Form 8130-9 tag or a Safety of Flight letter. A part without a SOF pedigree can only be installed on an aircraft if a "GROUND TEST ONLY" sticker is affixed to the component and the Solumina Work Order directing the installation of the sticker will also contain a "REMOVE BEFORE FLIGHT" operation requiring SOF paperwork documentation approval. This operation remains open until complied with which prevents Flight Release from being issued with an component that has not bee approved for flight. The inventory control system insures that the Aircraft components that are required to fulfill a given production work order are listed in the "Parts" tab of the work order as shown in Figure 13. The parts for a given work order are bundled into a tray and stored in the Flight Test material storage facility. In order to minimize the possibility of creating shortages in the system, Flight Test refrains from pulling on stocking work order parts until 7 days prior to the schedule installation start date. Planning for the needed parts is conducted in coordination with the Production Materials Group. A weekly planning meeting is held, whereby work orders schedule for incorporation several months in advance of the needed date, are reviewed part by part. If the delivery date for any part does not meet the installation need date, these parts are posted to a "shortage" list which receives a high degree of focused effort to expedite the part from the supplier or "canned" from an existing green aircraft and backfilled as required.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 23 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

7.2.1 Shipping & Receiving Parts in Flight Test

Personnel responsible for maintaining/expediting parts for each shift have the responsibility to locate and deliver timely all parts to the plane captain or the designee assigned to each test aircraft. Personnel assigned to each shift will record in a shift-turnover the status of all parts. Personnel responsible for getting parts to flight test will contact the shift supervisor/foreman immediately when the status of a critical part has changed or is not expected to arrive on time. Names and numbers of Personnel in shipping and receiving will be posted in the Flight Test Operations so they can be contacted on any shift for emergency parts.

7.2.2 Stock Material

Stock material (defined by type design of the aircraft) is managed by the Materials organization. This includes the planning, acquisition (fabricated and purchased), shipping and receiving, stocking and inventory management for production material. This involves management of spares inventory, parts upgrades and parts obtained from production. For those parts obtained from production, close management is required to avoid exceeding exposing the part to greater than 30 flight hours. This is required to return a new part to production or ensure the financial consequences are addressed.

7.2.3 Conformed Material

Conformed Material are components that have received a conformity inspection and 8130-9 tag. These items are tracked in the stock control system so that they find their way to the correct airplane scheduled to perform the test involving that component. Engineering defines what components require conformity and place those items on a Request For Conformity. Generally speaking only newly defined components and assemblies get conformed, while TSO parts and components certified on previous Gulfstream installations do not. Before replacing any part or installing any new part on a test aircraft the Aircraft Coordinator and the Q.C. Inspector will check to see if a conformed part is required and verify that the 8130-9 Statement of Conformity tag is available A record of all conformed parts and serial numbers will be placed in the flight test operations work area, and maintained by a Q.C. Inspector.

7.2.4 Non-Stock Material

Non-Stock Material is anything not considered as stock. This material primarily consists of parts used for flight test instrumentation installations. This material also consists of specially configured "stock" parts that provide functionality needed for testing, which most often supports instrumentation system requirements or measurements. It is important to manage this material separately to mitigate unintended installations on aircraft outside of Flight Test Control. Some non-stock material related to sensors, and instrumentation wiring etc is planned, and acquired by Flight Test Instrumentation. The stocking and inventory control of non-stock material and non-stock parts will be the responsibility of the Flight Test Material Organization these non-stock items will be stored in a controlled area with limited access.

7.3 Instrumentation Design (Figure 2 Ref 13)

Designs for Flight Test unique or production modified components are developed using the same criteria as production components (safety factors, stress margins, edge distances etc) and are developed within the same design environments using CATIA for surface modeling and assemblies and released in Smarteam database application. Part numbering is governed by GER-7834 Gulfstream Part Numbering Requirements. Production parts which have been modified to accommodate instrumentation installations for the GVI program and that will remain installed and in service after the test program are assigned a number that begins with 60P and end with special identifiers. These designs are controlled by record E.O. models which limit installations to aircraft used for Flight Test only. Non-production GVI parts that are used to support the installation of instrumentation or special Flight Test installations are assigned a part number beginning with 60E. The design of these parts is described in Flight Test Instrumentation Engineering Standard Operating Procedures. 60P designs are performed using Catia v5 and approved through the same workflow approval process used for standard production parts. These workflows are managed in Smarteam data management

Flight Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 24 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

system. 60E designs utilize streamlined work flow approval procedures. Designs are then translated into Solumina work orders required to fabricate the components. These parts are routed to internal Gulfstream manufacturing resources or to outside 3rd party groups for fabrication. Once these parts are delivered they are stocked in the Flight Test Materials storage facility. 60E pars are removed from the aircraft before it receives its standard Certificate of Airworthiness (C of A).

7.4 Modification Package (Figure 2 Ref 14)

The modifications package is a strategic planning document that lists Solumina and FTWA work order numbers that will be incorporated into a given aircraft modification period. They are normally organized by TIA number and stored in the following location (example given is SN 6001):

This spreadsheet breaks down work orders into a greater detail by listing the number of operations for a given work order. This can vary from one operation to several hundred depending upon the complexity of the work order in question. As operations are completed over time, individual operations are checked off as complete and total completion percentage can be computed as a means to measure progress during a modification period. Figure 12 presents a typical tracking burn down chart that compares remaining deferred operations vs. date. The Modification package task list is transferred to the Coordinator's Daily Plan to identify the specific priorities on a per-shift basis.

-		6001 Planned Alrcraft Upgrade Program						
Coordina tors Work Item	Install Description	Model # / Solumina WO #	Priority	Operat Ions Total	Oper Closed	% Complete	Hotes	
6		Total Work Orders/Remaining Ops	COUNTA	57	7	7	Total Operations Remaining	
7								
8		R11D016457-1	ļ					
9	and a superstant and the second se		<u> </u>	<u> </u>			[·····	
0	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·		j	<u> </u>				
1	Dear West Demuired for THE 7/20 (ED Destroy TRo ARMS)		<u>.</u>		<u>.</u>			
	Upen work Required for TIA 1/10 (FF, brakes, TRS, NW 3)	40152082101	: risionia 4 contact	-	: ////////////////////////////////////		and the second	
	INSTALL (2) 60032440307002 HVD SH ITTLE VALVES DED 6003244200N00128 FEE 6	A0157863001	100000000000000000000000000000000000000	10000000012	29995695642.4 4	100%		
5	Replace t Houtboard brake accumulator valves with 60P32441907002 units? work in	A0160322901	1.000 (1.000) 1.000 (1.000)	SCROENT	ACCESSION 7	100%		
6	REWORK - CABLE INSTL - EMERGENCY CONTROL (WORK ORDER SHOULD BE CANCI	A0166053901	2	6	0	0%		
7	REWORK - COMPONENT INSTL- VALVE, PARK BRAKE CONTROL 60P32480102002	A0166112001	2	11	ň	0%	in the second	
8	Installs Universal CVR/FDR cockpit control unit in REER	A0169228301	2	5	ŭ	0%	This is complete, buyoff only	
9	Upgrade LH MLG Dressed Assembly to 60P3212010A007.	A0174324001	2	54	Ō	0%	Upgrade CWSIU and MRPSAs to 2003	
0	Upgrade LH MLG Dressed Assembly to 60P3212011A007	A0174468801	2	54	0	0%	Upgrade CWSIU and MRPSAs to 2003	
1	CRB 621974 Parking Brake Handle p/n roll to 60P32480232002 (currently 2001) effe	A0179884001	2	7	0	0%		
2	Brake red X's when hydraulic servicing the L'reservoir during engine power assurance	R09D026913-3	12 mil	1000000	120000000	100%		
3	REER circuit breaker panel overlay re-work required.	R100010229-1	2	1	0	0%	Added TIA 7 due to TIA pre-req sheet top level install list	
4	CRB 614053ABA WIRE MOVE ISSUE _ Swap wires for LH Inbd and Outbd brake temp	R10D020644-1	2	100003	6.5003	100%		
5	CRB 613790 add HUD Personality moduel to EER	R10D031292-1	2	1	0	0%	Added TIA 7 due to TIA pre-req sheet top level install list	
6	RED LINE ISSUES GVI-TS-3204, Rev G, section 4.3 requires to be compiled with	R10D031693-2	2	1	0	0%		
7	Install NLG Assembly Rebuilt GLG 0001 (-3 Motor, 2002 NPRSA, Harness upgrade)	110013911	2	3	0	0%		
8	All 4 sets of brakes required to be removed to have milled down and thermocopies re	R11D016443-1	2	2	0	0%		
9	NWS tiller -4 Installation	TBD	2	TBD				
0	Upgrade TRAS on both TRUs	TBD	2	TBD	TBD	1 		
1	NOTE: 709 Previously deferred WD's still need to be reviewed for TIA 7 a	TED	2	TBD	TBD			
2				470		100	Tabal Characters & Considera	
3		Total Upper adurts 7 Open Ops	SUM	1/9	34	1970	Total Operations Remaining	
4		Total Work Ordar Sitemaning Ops		19	14	000000000000000000000000000000000000000	Tocal Operations Remaining	
	* · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	1			 		
7	Open Work Required for TIA 11 (ECS)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	<u> </u>				ŧ	
A	Install new fasteners in the canopy assembly per ECR-615715 AND ECR-615830	A0161915001	200001 20000	1	10	100%		
9	HARNESS INSTALLATION LEER	A0178264401	100001		0		172 operations deferred to C of A by 110012329	
ol	HARNESS INSTALLATION REED	A0173264601	1000 4 1000		100000 D	#01//01	196 operations deferred to C of A by 11D012395	
1	Uninstall wiring work around (60P3913129W, 60P3312130W, and 60P3312131W) dis	R09D018336-1	2	3	3	100%	a service and the service of the ser	
2	Uninstall wiring work around (60P3313129W, 60P3312130W, and 60P3312131W) dis	R090018336-2	100002 2000	2	2	100%		
3	Logic for FDR system fail CAS message incorrect. Upgrade Planeview software 631:	R09D019826-1	2	2	2	100%	In-work	
4	Production test spec squawkigInternal baggage door CAS message inop @Requires i	R090021548-1	2.00	2	2	100%	Ref.09D021548 Cannot comply, agress rope prevents dosure	
-	Productive to do an	0000004 5 40 4 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	Property and the	Landonstanar	Lesuratoriésone •	Tresserversions a COOM	- to see a second to all the colling of the tool of the tool of the tool of the tool of the colling of the colling of the tool of the colling	

FIGURE 11 - MODIFICATION PACKAGE SPREADSHEET SCREEN SHOT



FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 25 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL



OPERATION BURN DOWN - 6003



FIGURE 12 - DEFERRED WORK ORDER OPERATION BURN DOWN

7.5 Production Work Orders (Figure 2 Ref 15)

For the GVI program, Flight Test personnel maintain surveillance of all approved and pending changes affecting Flight Test aircraft. This data is stored in Excel spreadsheets located in the following network directory. Each airplane has its own file (the example shown is for GVI SN 6004).

Every work order in Solumina is reviewed and assigned a deferral state identifying an appropriate TIA #, inspection interval, flight number or planned modification period. If the work order does not contain deferral instructions, then it is assumed to be the next flight, or, a second DI is written to request clarification. Solumina DIs pass through specific maturity gates enroute to becoming a re-work order.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 26 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

The least of the state of the state			Criter No A0163227501, Part No 60P2537150N001_C · C · C · C
- / C T BIM-		1997 - 1997 -	To Lat Mode View Since +1. (2) [3] (3/8) (30)
	같은 1일 - 1일 같은 1일 - 1일		
	State - A State	Station State	Dider No Quer + 10 Step Part No Part Type Program ▶ A0169227501 0000 + 010 60P2597150N001_C I ANY
er	Order Status	Part Parc	Grow Status#AC THE HELE DEMONE AND DEDLACE ELECTRO MECHANICAL ACCY
3 DME A0169227501	50P2597150N00 ACTIVE	N/A I	On CONTRACT AND RELACE CECTION RECORDER AND RELACE CECTION RECORDER ASSI
PLEMENTAL 0 (A0169227501 FAI	60P2597150N00 IN QUEU	E NA I	040 PENDING FILLET SEAL AND DVERCOAT FASTENERS
	water to the test at the		050 PENDING TOUCH UP PRIME
10. A	anig harina ay bara in in	0081	080 PENDING TOUCH UP TOP COAT
	이 가 같은 것이 같이 많이 많이 많이 많이 많이 많이 많이 했다.	S Or	At of this 000 PENDING INSPECT
and a second sec	an a	1 3	STATION
O' the second se	and a second	- Anna Anna	NEW REWORK PLAN TO REPLACE 60P2597150A010 WITH 60P2597150A025 ELECTRO-MECHANIC
	weber more constant in a		
	۲۰۰۰ <mark>کېږو نو نه په د</mark> د کېږو د د	States 1	MODEL REF. 60P2597150N001_C REVISION
an an an Albert and a subject of the second s	nang ng panan na na sang sang na sang n Na sang ng pang		
		- Addition of	,是 <mark>我们的现在分词,</mark> 我们就是我们的,我们就是你的,你们们就是你们的你的。""你们的你们的,你不知道你们的你的,你不是你的你,你不是你的?""你没有这些,我们还不 "你们就是你说你,你们我们你?""你是你你是你你?""你们,你们我们就是你你你你?""你?""你们你?""你们你?""你?""你?""你?""你?""你?""你,
and the second	(Salar) be a set of a		[010] ISSUE
i and a second		and an in the second second	Additional Operation Info
ﻪ ﺩﻩ ﺩﻩ ﺩﻩ ﺩﻩ ﻣﯘ <mark>ﻣﯘﻣﻪﻣﻪﻣﻪ ﻣﻪﺩﻩ</mark> ﻣﻪ ﻣﯘﻣﯘﻣﯘ ﻣﻪﻣﻪ ﺩﻩ ﺋﯘﻣﯘ ﺋﯘ	والمعادية		Operation Status: CLOSE
and the second	Tatis and the second of the second	erelastoration	DEDADTNENT (STOCKDOON ISS) IE MATEDIAL
nin and a state of the second se			김 그렇게 그는 물건에 가 물질렀다. 한 명령은 것 같았다. 이 것은
angi, yanana waangina maya kata aha aha ama ama afananana ama afan ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana a		e de carela de la c	រាកពាត់ការ
<mark>Alexandron and and Alexandron and Ale Alexandron and Alexandron and A</mark>	ىلىغان ئېرىكى ئېيى ئەلەرمە مۇت ئىمات يەلى ئاستان تە مەلىكى ئېچىلىغان ئېچىنى ئەتلەرمە مەتتىرىكى ئىچىلىغان ئارىكى	the state of the	
			Btep Text
S in an Indiana a survey and an interest	anadian management and an ar an	and a standards	1. 영향 2. · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
			에 가는 생활하는 것이 가 가운 것이 있는 것이 있었다. 또 한 것은 가지 않는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있다. 가지 않는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 같은 것이 있다. 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 같은 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는 것이 있는
공항 이 같은 것 같아요. 이 가지 나는 것 같아요. 이 가지 않는 것 않는	an fair an statement		요즘 같은 것은 부분에게 물질러 가지 하겠다. 이 가지 않는 것이다.
د بار این مراجع بر میرون میرد به دارد و میشون میرد. این این میرون م		- the second	<u>n sent de la sente sente sente la sente de la sente</u>
in some some some some some some some some			Parts Display Parts Data Collections (
	and the second	harterture have	Oper Part Ref R
معن المسرعان المرابق يؤمن والتاريم والجامع ومرابعة الإلارة التربيب تترقي	and the second	The last	No Action My UUM Ne Des R.
		ns	9005 USE 1 EA AMS328182-202
an a	an and a second s	ist	SODS USE 1 EA GAB17G
and the second	e version for a second second second		SUCS USE 1 EA GAMPSZZU
a na sa ana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana	in a state of the second second second second second second		8005 USE I EA GAMPS7115
and a straight and a straight a straight a straight and a straight a straight a straight a straight a straight a	in a state of the second s	المكارية بتسامس	(a) A second se second second sec
an a	ليه مأبادهم منابر متيعمتها مسابع مسطيقه طه	www.com.com	A comparison of the second
12 Sign Un/Ull Log 1	이상화를 제가 많은 것이 사람을 통하는 것이		© Discrepancies Header & Model Morder Notes Holds O'Serials PDA Comp Parts TOL

FIGURE 13 - SOUMINA WORK ORDER SCREEN SHOT

7.5.1 Configuration Change Effect Process

The FAA has a specific requirement to document that evolving Engineering Change Requests (ECRs) do not invalidate previously booked certification test results performed under Type Inspection Authorization (TIA). This process has evolved from specific form to database entry. Figure 14 shows a screen shot of the ECR database with Configuration Change Effect identified circled. This is labeled as "Impact to Configuration Testing YES or NO". After the start of TIA testing, every approved ECR must have this box checked as a condition of the ECR approval. The analysis behind this check is for the ECR design engineer sponsor reviewing completed TIA tests with the appropriate DER and Flight Test Engineer. If there is a case that would affect TIA results, the requirement is for the ECR sponsor to coordinate with the Chief Engineer, Program Manager, and Flight Test to get approval and have the affected TIA results scheduled for repeat. These details are entered in the "Notes" field of the database. The ECR database can produce a report that lists all approved ECRs along with the field result of the Impact to Certification Testing block.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 27 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL



FIGURE 14 - ECR DATABASE SCREEN SHOT

7.6 Flight Test Work Order (FTWA) (Figure 2 Ref 16)

Flight Test Work Orders (FTWA's) are similar to Production Work Orders. In the case of GVI they are both authored in the same Solumina database, and for legacy programs are authored in Foxpro database program. The responsible party for FTWAs is the Aircraft Coordinator for the installation of aircraft components not covered by Production orders (such as software loads, supplier maintenance actions, inspection and maintenance intervals etc.), and the Aircraft Instrumentation Lead for the installation of Flight Test specific components such as racks, computer work stations, sensors and related wiring. Each FTWA has a Flight Number effectivity associated with it that specifies when the modification is to be performed. This effectivity is the equivalent of a TIA deferral statement in a production work order. Detailed instructions for the authoring of FTWAs can be found the Flight Test Instrumentation Standard Operating Procedure document A summary of each airplane's FTWAs is kept in an Excel spreadsheet in the following network directory:

7.6.1 Hardware/Software Control Procedures

The Flight Test program will use flight test specific Software Control Drawing (SWCD) to control the Line-Replaceable Unit (LRU) components containing upgradeable software for each of the test aircraft in the program. For the GVI program, Solumina production work orders and ECRs do not define software levels, therefore FTWAs are used to authorize software loads. The production SWCD (60PSWCD001) must first list the software as approved for installation and safe for flight before FTWAs are released for R&D flights. Prior to each Type Inspection Authorization (TIA) test flight and as part of the conformity process, specific test aircraft Software Control Drawings (60TSWCD00x Rev x) must be released and DER approved, to which conformity inspection will be performed to.

It is permissible to load software in advance of the Safety for Flight statement from the cognizant engineering group and release letter being issued (see section 7.6.1.2 step 3). However prior to closing that FTWA and issuing the flight release, these documents must be in place along with the 60PSWCD drawing revision. The following process documents step by step process approving upgrades to the Flight Test aircraft.

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 28 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

Flight Test

7.6.1.1 Supplier and Engineering Flight Release

- 1. The supplier of the updated hardware and/or software provides Gulfstream with SOF documentation in the form of a TCM. This documentation contains a test summary that provides assurance that the software is mature and tested to be safe for operation of Gulfstream flight test aircraft.; Along with this SOF TCM is a listing of the known issues with that version of hardware and/or software.
- 2. The updated hardware and or software component is installed in the GVI ITF where Gulfstream Engineering performs the required SOF ITPs and documents results.
- 3. Results of ITPs are reviewed to determine pass/fail of the test points required to achieve SOF for that hardware/software component. (3a) Any issues that are classified as must fix (severity 2 PR) will resul in a software update from the supplier, this starting the process over at step 1.
- 4. If Iron Bird (IB) testing is required, this will take place in the Gulfstream ADRL G650 Iron Bird test facility where the required SOF test procedures are performed. If IB testing is not required, the process goes to step 7, Engineering generation of SOF documentation for Flight Test.
- 5. The SOF required Iron Bird test procedures are performed on the identified hardware/software configuration with results documented.
- Results of the IB tests are reviewed to determine pass/fail of the test points required to achieve SOF for that hardware/software update from the supplier, thus starting the process over at step 1.
- 7. Following successful completion of the IB testing and results review, Gulfstream Engineering generates and releases SOF documentation.
- 8. Engineering organizes a briefing with Flight Operations and Flight Test to review the results of the ITF and/or IB testing, known issues, any new issues, and the configuration changes required on the airplane for the required hardware and/or software update.

7.6.1.2 Flight Test Configuration Change

- 1. Flight Test and Flight Operations approves the configuration change for installation on the specified test aircraft.
- 2. Verification step to ensure that all of the SOF documentation has been provided to flight test to support the configuration change. (10a) If the SOF documentation is not yet available, the Lead FTE or Cognizant FTE for the target flight test airplane can approve or deny the installation on the airplane for ground test only.
- 3. Verification step to ensure 60PSWC document is released as this is the released engineering that approves the configuration and provides SOF assurance to support installation on the target aircraft. (11a) If the 60PSWC is not yet released, a DRDI tagged GROUND TEST ONLY, NOT FOR FLIGHT can be used with Lead/COG FTE approval for getting the software loaded on the airplane for early checkouts.
- 4. Flight Test is notified by Engineering that the 60PSWC has been released, this clearing the action for the FTWA to be issued to make the configuration change.
- 5. The Lead FTE or COG FTE directs the Aircraft coordinator to issue a FTWA to install the hardware and/or software components that have been addes to the 60PSWC as an approved configuration for the flight test aircraft.
- 6. The configuration change is performed on the airplane based on the direction in the FTWA. The Lead FTE or COG FTE is notified that this work has been accomplished on the airplane.
- 7. Return to service test specification are performed in accordance to the disposition in the FTWA to ensure the integrated systems in the airplane are operating as required following the configuration change.

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 29 of 82

Flight Test

Gulfstream

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

- If Gauntlet testing is not required, go to step 17. If Gauntlet testing is required to be performed on the aircraft, a series of abnormal and/or endurance tests are conducted by Flight Test and Flight Operations. (16a) If there are failures during the Gauntlet testing that require a must fix, a severity 1 PR is created.
- This is a verification step after successful completion of Gauntlet or if Gauntlet is not required. This is in place to ensure the 60PSWC is released to provide SOF for the case where the DRDI "GROUND TEST ONLY, NOT FOR FLIGHT" was used to install the hardware and/or software update.
- 10. The Lead FTE or COG FTE is responsible for submitting the change to Engineering in the form of the SWC update request. This is used by Engineering to determine what Flight Test has changed on the target aircraft so an update can be made to the 60TSWC (aircraft unique) and released. (18a) Engineering uses the information from Flight Test to release the 60TSWC on a weekly basis or before a TIA conformity event. It the specific airplane 60TSWC that receives a FAA form 8110-3 (DERs) or 8100-9 (ODA ARs)

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 30 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL






FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 31 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

7.7 Coordinators Daily Plan (Figure 2 Ref 17)

The Aircraft Coordinators shall maintain a daily work plan for each assigned test aircraft (see example below). This should identify the Production Work Order, FTWAs and maintenance tasks to be performed in the upcoming shifts to support the test schedule. This list is to be reviewed at shift change meetings to clarify the tasks and priorities as work transitions from one shift to another. The Coordinator's Daily Plan spreadsheets are kept in the following network location:

		Pre	-	Part	Work				Work
1D ▼	Task 두	FI 🗸	Gro	Stat -	Stat -	Reference	•	Comments 🗸 🗸	Date 🗸
1806	CMP September Due List	264			No. 5 1 Second			24 Month MLG Corrosion, LDG Alternate Extension Ops Check,	09/25/11
			A, M					Hydraulic Manifold Filter Exchange; CMP code 323917, 321052,	
								321053, 291449, 291514	
1849	Secure Rolls-Royce EMS Rack	264	I, M	—					09/27/11
3611	AFT Equipment Area Missing	264	м		F	11D039511			09/27/11
	Fasteners		141		لينا				
1853	FQMS NVM download	264						Non Volatile Memory (NVM) download for Steve Bruce, requires	09/29/11
			<u>^</u>					28 volt power	
: Hite	Defuel to 3,200 lbs	264	1	_				Keep boost pumps on during defueling and transport to hangar	09/28/11
			•					10	
1767	Hamess Inspection Station 476	265	A M	_	n	11D028663-2		Inspection required every (3) days. DUE 9/25/11	09/25/11
					5441				
1731	Leading Edge Rivet Inspection	265	M			10D027301		Every flight	TBD
1759	Flap "D" Track Inspection	265	M			11D008931-21		Every flight	TBD
1825	LH Wing TE Flap Track "A" Hat	265	M	l		11D039002-3		Daily inspection requirement of damaged area	TBD
1852	MLG SBA Spindle Bushing	266	м	m		11D041034-1		Engineering to disposition blending of bushing to allow for fly-	
	Blend		171	how!				on for a maximum of 10 flights	
1842	Replace Left MLG Post Side	273	м	m	m	11D040471		Awaiting Bushing, PN C1M5303CA001, ordered 26 Sep. DOD	09/29/11
	Brace Actuator Bushing		171					29 Sep 11	
1730	Elevator backlash check	273	A, M	—		09D017940			TBD
1714	FQMS Degrade msg	999		67	,	11D022972-4		Have parts for left side only. Complete work when parts for right	TBD
			~	1I				side arrive	
1698	HSTAB Actuator Tie-Rod Trigger	350 hrs				11D009668; CM	Ρ	HSTAB Tie-Rod Trigger Lock Inspection Procedures. Due next	TBD
	Lock Inspection CMP 059246		M	-		code 059246		mod period	
1538	No Localizer Displayed in HUD	TIA 18E	*	_		11D011242-4		Comply with Engineering disposition, condition still exists.	TBD
			^					Engineering assistance requested	

FIGURE 16 - COORDINATORS DAILY PLAN SCREEN SHOT

8.0 PHASE IV: AIRPLANE MODIFICATION

The Airplane Modification phase of the process implements the configuration changes to the test aircraft as defined in the test planning process. This requires close coordination amongst the flight test team and adherence to configuration management processes.

8.1 Shift Turnover Coordination Meetings (Figure 2 Ref 18)

Shift turnover meetings shall be held to coordinate maintenance and instrumentation work in progress that is transferring to the next shift to support the next days test activities. Attendance at the meeting shall include aircraft and shift leads from both maintenance and instrumentation and the coordinators facilitate the discussion on the Daily Plan (ref Para 7.7), aircraft status and work to be accomplished on the upcoming shift.

Julfstream

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 32 of 82

Flight Test

8.2 Airplane Mechanical/Electrical/CMP (Figure 2 Ref 19-20)

Airplane touch labor is divided into Maintenance Action (scheduled and unscheduled maintenance), and Modification Action (Configuration upgrades to support a test). Scheduled maintenance action is tracked by the Computer Maintenance Program (CMP) and performed per the requirements of the Airplane Maintenance Manual (AMM) for each tail number. Scheduled maintenance items have predefined and approved ± hour and/or cycle windows in which to perform the work. Any item exceeding the + tolerance of the window is defined as "overdue". The FT maintenance group monitors the status of the items and performs the work as required. Flight Release forms are signed after all outstanding overdue maintenance items are completed, unless the item is entered as a discrepancy in Solumina and receives Engineering disposition. Unscheduled maintenance items are entered as discrepancies and receive Engineering disposition to reaffirm the AMM action or modify it as necessary. The disposition defines the terms of deferability, if any. The maintenance status of the aircraft is communicated to flight crew during the pre-flight briefing and the crew must agree to accept the aircraft as presented or request that any particular deferred maintenance item be resolved prior to flight.

Configuration changes are implemented as defined by the Aircraft Test Coordinator using an approved Solumina Work Order and/or Flight Test Work Authorization. It is the responsibility of maintenance personnel to ensure all work is installed in accordance with referenced drawings and proper documentation. It is important to confirm that conformed parts are installed on systems that are to be TIA tested. Maintenance personnel complying with the work instructions are to provide required information in the work order to support documenting completion, transitioning of open work to other personnel and supporting subsequent inspection activity and work order closing.

The following items are standard departmental procedures for working and closing FTWAs. Note that G650 FTWAs are paperless and stored in Solumina, while legacy aircraft FTWAs are managed in Foxpro Database and using official paper copies.

- The maintenance personnel performing the task shall initial, date and provide employee number legibly in the appropriate block after the work item has been completed. Before proceeding to the next task, maintenance personnel shall coordinate thru the Lead or Supervisor to obtain appropriate inspections by a Quality Control Inspector
- For those circumstances when maintenance personnel begin work on an item that has been started by another person, the individual beginning the work must be able to determine the status of the installation (verbal review or thru documentation) to ensure proper completion of the work item and final buy-off.
- Maintenance Leads shall keep abreast of all work performed on their assigned aircraft at all times.
- Every item of an issued FTWA shall be closed before the FTWA is removed from the Maintenance Lead's folder
- No person can remove the original FTWA from a folder without prior permission from the Maintenance Lead. Before the original FTWA is removed from the folder, a sheet of paper will be placed in the folder in the same sequence for the original, including the name of the person and date/time the original was removed. The Maintenance Lead can assign anyone to make a copy of a FTWA. After the working copies have been made the ORIGINAL MUST BE RETURNED TO THE PLANE CAPTAIN FOLDER and the sheet of paper w/info discarded.
- Person(s) assigned to configuration control may permanently remove Original FTWAs after they have been closed to update the FTWA database, and file the original closed FTWAs are stored in Flight Test records area and copies are scanned and maintain with the aircraft's records in the Q.C. area.

8.3 Instrumentation Installations (Figure 2 Ref 21)

Instrumentation configuration changes are also implemented as defined by the Aircraft Test Coordinator using approved Solumina (GVI) or Paper (Legacy aircraft) FTWAs. The FTIE is responsible for authoring the FTWA in accordance with the engineering requirements of the instrumentation drawing or model (60E drawing

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 33 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

numbers in the case of GVI). Flight Test Instrumentation Technicians will handle back shop build and applications of sensors and coordinate their calibration prior to installation (such as strain gages etc). These technicians will then oversee the installation of instrumented components onto the aircraft by aircraft mechanics. Wiring and data system hook up and checkout will also be performed by the instrumentation technicians under the guidance of FTIEs.

8.4 Weight and Balance (Figure 2 Ref 22)

fstream

Flight Test aircraft Weight and Balance is performed according to approved Weight and Balance manuals for individual airplane models which can be found on the company intranet site at the following link:

The FTE defines the requirement for a test mission's W&B and the aircraft coordinator performs the calculations to define the ballast configuration to achieve the requirements. These calculations are performed using the following W&B Forms which are approved and controlled at the start of an aircraft's test program:

- Form A Computed / Actual Empty Weight and Balance
- Form C Basic Weight and C.G. Log
- Form D Flight Loading Computation

In advance of ballasting to a required W&B condition, the FTE and Aircraft Coordinator shall coordinate the requirements with FTIE Mechanical Designers to ensure an approved floor plan model exists or will be released to provide engineering approval for the configuration. Depending on the nature of the requirements, this can require long-lead times for floor-loading analysis by Stress and identification and incorporation for any structural enhancements to achieve the extremes of the envelope.

In order to maintain accurate control of weight and CG, a test aircraft shall be weighed, in cooperation with the Engineering Mass Properties group, under the following conditions:

- When an aircraft is inducted into flight test for a test program requiring operations near or at the W&B limits
- After completing an extensive modification where W&B may have been appreciably changed
- After initial ballast loadings at the W&B limits
- After a prolonged period of time where multiple changes to W&B have been calculated
- Anytime there is uncertainty of loadings that may exceed a limit.

The W&B forms are to be stored along with each mission's test cards. For the GVI program, these are contained in the Flight Records folder on in the following network directory location:

8.5 Removal and Installation Log (Figure 2 Ref 23)

The Removal Installation Logs (R/I Logs) provide a record of all production parts that are removed and installed on flight test aircraft. R/I records are recorded on Form GA 0017 and governed by the Production Quality Assurance Manual. The R/I Log must be maintained as the work proceeds on a test aircraft. The R/I Log (manual record) is on file at the aircraft work station and is maintained by technicians, and all work is inspected by the Q.C. Inspector. Electronic summary files are kept in Excel format are kept in the following network directory location:

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 34 of 82

Flight Test

8.6 Return to Service Testing (Figure 2 Ref 24)

fstream

Return to service functional test requirements are determined by Engineering based on the extent of maintenance work performed. If instructions are not provided by the work order implementing the maintenance being performed, than Maintenance personnel will generate a discrepancy for Engineering to disposition with definition of required functional tests.

8.7 Instrumentation and Airplane Pre-Flight Inspection / Flight Release (Figure 2 Ref 25)

8.7.1 Data System Pre-Flight

Flight Test Instrumentation Engineers (FTIEs) are responsible for ensuring the aircraft's data system is prepared to record all necessary parameters to support scheduled testing. They will confirm the test numbers with the Aircraft Coordinators, and convey such information to the Techs as needed.

Flight Test Instrumentation Techs (Techs) will boot the data system, input information pertinent to the day's tests, and verify data system operation prior to the start of testing. Data system pre-flight checklist will be completed and provided to Q.C. personnel to support issuance of the Flight Release.

8.7.2 Aircraft Pre-Flight

Aircraft Preflight inspections are complied with by maintenance/Q.C. personnel for aircraft checks in accordance with the Production QA Manual. For test aircraft, these procedures may be tailored to address specific points of interest as defined by Engineering and documented in Quality Assurance traveler forms.

Subsequent to completing the maintenance preflight, Inspection approves the preflight and signs the Flight Release (Quality Instruction 9.1.4 and Form GA 0542). The form is filed with aircraft records retention. Signature of the Flight Release indicates that the airplane is declared airworthy per 14 CFR Part 43.7. See Quality Manual Section for 9.1.4.

9.0 PHASE V: TEST EXECUTION

The test execution phase of the process includes the preparation of test cards, conducting pre-flight briefings, performing the test mission, post-flight briefs, post-flight inspection and results reporting.

9.1 Test Cards (Figure 2 Ref 26)

Test Cards are prepared by the FTE in charge of that test phase testing in reference to the governing Flight Test Plan. Every test flight shall require a planned set of tests documented in a test card format that adheres to the standard defined in Appendix A. The format will include the following basic data:

- BLOCK A: Test Card Identification Block includes SN, Flight No., Test Card No., Title, Test Point No. Configuration set up summary, and Notes
- BLOCK B: Procedure Block includes Run No., step-by-step procedure for the pilot to perform the test, abort criteria, and test point acceptance criteria
- BLOCK C: Observation Notes, including time when procedures begin and end

In addition, the test card will include details of the specific configuration of the aircraft required for the test point in question. These details will be sufficient such that the test card can be executed without reference to other documentation. The test card will also include a brief description of the test point and, if required, the phases of the test. Finally, the test card will include space for UTC time referenced comments by the executing Flight Test Engineer, and certifying authorities as necessary.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 35 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

The coversheet for the flight test cards is reviewed and signed by the FTE executing the test (signifying the cards conform to the requirements of the Flight Test Plan, applicable TSHAs, IFRs and AFM), the Pilot-in-Command (acknowledging procedures, techniques, configuration, and risk level classification), and Aircraft Coordinator (signifying that the aircraft configuration is appropriate for the test being performed). Test cards for all completed test missions are located in the following network directory location:

9.1.1 Ground Run / Flight Numbering System

In accordance with standard Flight Test practice, any test for which data are to be preserved will have a test number assigned to it. Test numbers will be designated as Flight or Ground as follows:

<u>Flight Numbering</u> enumerate the test flights, and are three-digit entities (padded with leading zeros if needed, e.g., "023") until such time as four digits are required.

Flight numbers designate test flights, indicating that the aircraft has left the ground at least once. A planned flight that does not result in a takeoff will become a Ground Test, and will be assigned a Ground Test number as described below.

The Flight number is incremented when both engines are shut down following a landing, unless the shutdown is a planned part of the test (e.g., on the ground prior to or after flight), or if engines are cycled to clear maintenance faults in a continuous run of data.

<u>Ground Test Numbers</u>: are expressed in a 'three-plus-two' format, the three-digit flight number and a twodigit ground run number separated by a lowercase character (e.g., "023g01"). The ground run number is padded with a leading zero if needed.

- The Flight number integral to the Ground Test number represents the upcoming Flight number for the aircraft.
- The two-digit ground run number increments for every Ground Test performed.
- The lowercase letter that separates the three-digit flight number and the two-digit ground run number is either "g" ('ground test') or "m" ('maintenance').
- "g" indicates a Ground Test whose information is to be preserved.
- "m" indicates that the data system was brought up for configuration or evaluation purposes, with no expectation that the data will be kept or Flight Notes taken down. The two-digit run number should be the same number as would have been used for an actual ground test.

(Note: In the event that a decision is subsequently made to preserve the maintenance data, the "m" will change to a "g" and the test will be recorded as an official Ground Test. Tests bearing the "m" designation will otherwise have no effect on the Ground Test numbering system and can be reused at will.)

Valid Ground Tests do not require that digital data be recorded. This can occur when tests are purely qualitative in nature, or when the FTE's observations and notes suffice to satisfy a given test's requirements. These test notes will be included in the Flight Records books, and thus require a suitable Ground Test number to identify them.

Ground Test numbers should be incremented as often as needed during testing. Some examples of when it might be desirable to increment the test number are

- Any time the data system is commanded to shut down, other than for data system trouble-shooting activities
- When the fundamental nature of the tests being performed changes, or a significant phase of testing is completed
- Whenever there is a significant break in testing that sensibly suggests a pause in data recording (an
 expected period of inactivity exceeding fifteen minutes, as a suggestion)

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 36 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

The Flight Notes should clearly indicate any time the Ground Test number changes. The FTE will inform the Aircraft Coordinator whenever he has used Ground Test numbers that will affect the published near-term schedule.

Responsibilities

stream

Aircraft Coordinators (AC) are responsible for coordinating test numbers within the Flight Test organization. They will publish anticipated test numbers as part of the near-term schedule. ACs will communicate to the FTIEs if data system operation is not required for upcoming tests, with the default condition being that test data are to be recorded.

Flight Test Engineers (FTEs) conduct tests onboard the test vehicle, adhering (as practical) to the test numbers specified on the near-term schedule. If data system operation is not needed for a given test the FTE will make that clear to the Aircraft Coordinator prior to testing, otherwise it will be assumed that the data system will record data for preservation.

The FTE should verify test numbers with that aircraft's Coordinator at the start of testing. The FTE may increment Ground Test numbers as deemed appropriate during testing, and is responsible for noting these test number changes as part of their Flight Notes.

If the FTE's use of Ground Test numbers affects the published near-term schedule, the FTE must communicate the final Ground Test number used to the Aircraft Coordinators. If an interactive dialog with that aircraft's Coordinator is not achieved, an email must be sent to all Aircraft Coordinators to ensure that any stand-in Coordinator is informed.

9.2 Flight Card Deck

The flight card deck consists of a cover sheet, applicable IFRs, THSAs, Weight and Balance, plus the test cards.

9.2.1 Cover Sheets (Figure 2 Ref 27)

Every test card package will contain a cover sheet that summarizes the most relevant information pertaining to a given test flight. The cover sheet is organized into blocks, the content of which are summarized as follows:

- **BLOCK A :** Flight Reference sections lists registration and SN, Flight number, flight date, weight, CG, Fuel Load, and quick reference AFM speeds.
- **BLOCK B:** Configuration Summary lists the most relevant major items constituting the configuration of the airplane directly related to the test mission.
- BLOCK C: Limitation and Restrictions in addition to the AFM limitations sections (ie relevant IFRs)
- **BLOCK D:** Hazards/TSHAs lists governing hazards analysis and procedures and risk classification for the test mission
- BLOCK E: List emergency equipment present on the airplane
- BLOCK F: List purpose of the test
- **BLOCK G:** List crew, reference times, cycle counts and signatures for concurrence with the planned test

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 37 of 82

Flight Test

9.3 Real Time Data Analysis (Figure 4 Ref 28)

fstream

Real time support is provided to monitor data or perform analysis for the following purposes:

- a) Determining Safety of Flight
- b) Determining if the test point was conducted successfully
- c) Determining if test result met expectations (ie., pass / fail)

Note that when monitoring parameters for items a & b above, it is often beneficial to have separate displays for pre-test configuration & set-up confirmation and the maneuver itself. This real time monitoring support can be provided either on-board or remotely via Telemetry. Which method should be utilized is dependent upon the minimum crew required to support the test and the risk level of the flight. While the pilot and the FTE are responsible for determining the preferred method, for high risk tests, the minimum crew and utilization of TM shall be reviewed at the Safety Review Board.

9.4 Test Flight Briefing (Figure 4 Ref 29)

Every flight test mission shall be preceded by a briefing (ref Appendix A for briefing guide). The briefing shall consist of two sections: The Engineering Brief which reviews the details of the test to be performed, and the Maintenance Brief which reviews the details of recent maintenance activities and any open flight squawks.

<u>Engineering Brief:</u> The Engineering brief can occur up to 24 hours in advance of the start of the test mission. The major elements of the pre-flight brief are as follows:

- Overview information listed on the cover sheet
- Test Procedures information listed on each test card
- TSHAs & IFRs
- Flight Test Personnel crew participants and task assignments
- Chase Aircraft / Telemetry Support Call signs, personnel, task assignments

At the end of the briefing the test card coversheet shall be signed by the briefing FTE and Aircraft Coordinator to concur the configuration of the aircraft is proper for the planned tests along with the Pilot –in-Command to approve the appropriate risk level is established for the mission.

In those cases where pre-flight briefings occur the day prior to the mission, the test crew will reconvene for a short briefing prior to the flight. This briefing will occur after the maintenance release to cover any applicable aircraft configuration items plus involve a quick review of the test cards covering the associated limits and TSHAs.

During the briefing, the test crew may agree to perform build-up maneuvers or add test points that are designed to provide more conclusive data results provided these enhance safety and efficiency of the mission without affecting the risk assessment for the tests or appreciably changing the test program scope. Only those tests briefed during the preflight briefing are authorized to be conducted on a test mission. Equally important is that the tests are to be conducted as briefed and within established limits.

If changes to the test point condition, test procedure, or success criteria become apparent that affect the test program scope or risk assessment, then approval from the originators of the test plan, or designees, is required, including determining if reconvening an SRB is required. However, in minor changes in procedure technique are agreed to, they can be redlined on the test card.



FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 38 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

Maintenance Brief: The Maintenance brief shall occur just prior to the pilot signing of the SAV/GA Form 542 Flight Release. The Quality Inspector for a particular airplane will provide an update on all flight safety relevant open flight squawks and summarizes the maintenance actions performed since the last flight. The pilot then signs the Flight Release and is responsible for subsequent aircraft operations.

9.4.1 FTE Crew Qualifications

Each FTE that serves as part of the test crew is required to demonstrate proficiency in the use of all equipment necessary to support the execution of the test. These requirements include:

- Demonstration of proficiency in the use of instrumentation systems such as IADS, TIU, Video Monitoring etc Including the recovery of instrumentation from computer operational interruptions
- Initial and recurrent Flight Safety International emergency egress training (includes the use of smoke protection, fire extinguishers, evacuation, and water survival)
- Initial and recurrent training in the operation of all aircraft doors (MED, EED, Baggage)
- Initial and recurrent training in the operation of the smoke ventilation valve
- Operation of seat belts, oxygen bottles, egress electrical saw, crash axe
- Proficiency in the use radios communications protocol and the use of specialized test equipment such as trailing cone, FCS, hydraulic offload control panels
- Individual FTE's must take responsibility to ground themselves when he or she is aware of physical or mental deficiencies which may adversely affect their ability to complete FTE duties.
- FAA Class III Medical

FTE crew qualifications will be tracked internally to insure compliance and currency. Any exceptions for crew qualifications are to be approved by the Manager, Flight Test Engineering or his designee.

NOTE: for test crew that are not fully qualified (infrequent flyers, suppliers, etc.) a pre-flight briefing will be provided by the FTE or Pilot on cabin and flight test safety equipment, operation of doors, egress procedures and use of radio equipment.

9.4.2 Minimum Crew

Standard operations for test missions will be 2 pilots, a flight test engineer and other personnel (FTE, Engineering, Supplier) deemed essential to support the purpose of the flight. For hazardous testing, the minimum essential crew will be limited to 2 pilots plus support by TM unless the additional crew member is required due to:

- Having access to additional data available on board aircraft (ie. Video)
- Exposure to data dropouts and loss of signal world drive unnecessary repeats of the hazardous test
- TM coverage is not feasible due to line of sight limitations
- Duties required on-board cannot be done solely by the 2 pilots (gain changes or crew procedures not able to be conducted by the pilots or from the pilot seats)
- Crew resource management where additional onboard personnel provides enhanced safety
- On-board technical support enhances safety compared to support via TM (ie. does the onboard monitoring enable FTE to understand the data & understand the data & aircraft behavior quicker due to the situational awareness that goes with being to monitor data plus experience aircraft response first hand

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 39 of 82

Flight Test

9.5 Flight Test Execution (Figure 2 Ref 30)

lfstream

During the test mission, the pilots retain the responsibility for ensuring the safe operation of the aircraft. The assigned test mission FTE on board the aircraft is responsible for directing the test activities during the mission. Any member of the flight crew has the right, at any time, to call for the mission to be terminated if, in their opinion, an event that was not planned and is not immediately explainable has occurred, or for any reason where one of the crewmembers feels uncomfortable about continuing.

Once a test mission has been launched, no member of the test crew may change or revise the planned test activities, unless the change is for flight safety reasons. No un-briefed maneuvers or tests not in the test cards will be conducted on any flight. Other requirements of test mission execution are:

- Personnel considered essential for the purpose of the mission are recommended by Flight Test with final authorization by the pilot in command
- Conducted in conditions governed by the Flight Operations Manual (weather minimums, daytime / nighttime, fuel minimums, etc).
- Conducted with the minimum crew required to perform the test within prescribed crew duty and crew rest limits (ref Chapter 4.15 Flight Operations Test Pilot Manual)
- Crewmembers will be qualified for the test to be performed. Pilots to be assigned by Flight Ops, FTEs will be selected by the FTE Manager or his designee
- In-flight duties to be established to fully optimize test crew resource management
- For tests classified as HIGH risk, the on-board test crew will review associated limits and abort procedures. This review is to include appropriate crew resource management and the assignment of responsibility to monitor limit parameters and abort calls.

9.5.1 Real Time Telemetry Room Protocol

Telemetry room equipment is available to support test missions as required and allows for more real-time monitoring of safety critical parameters. The use if the TM room and how it interacts with the crew is defined in this section. TM protocol to be followed both in the fixed in the TM room or in the TM mobile unit will be the same as those followed while conducting a test onboard the airplane.

While operating in the TM environment, all personnel in the telemetry monitoring room will conduct themselves in a professional business-like manner. In general, conversation should be held to the minimum required to successfully complete the test. Entry to the TM room will be limited to those with specific tasks necessary for the safe and successful conduct of the test. Those who wish to observe the flight may do so from the Observer Room. For all persons actively monitoring the flight in the TM room, cell phones, pagers, or other electronic devices must be OFF. Distractions during a test mission are a safety concern, and the cause of that distraction will be removed from the TM room.

- The Test Conductor (TC) is the person in charge of the TM room support crew and is the primary point of communication with the aircraft. All monitoring personnel communicate their observations to the TC who synthesizes all information and reports to the aircraft.
- The TC will communicate with the test aircraft by using the call-sign associated with the crew for that mission, typically "Gulf Test XX". The TM room will be identified with the call sign of "Gulf Test TM".
- In general, the TM room Test Conductor (TC) will be the only individual communicating directly with the Flight Crew on the airplane. Exceptions may be made at the discretion of the TC and Flight Crew. Discussions among the TC and FTEs/CEs shall be held between test maneuvers only. If a repeat of a maneuver is required by TM room personnel, the requesting FTE/CE will inform the TC why the repeat is necessary and, if agreed, the TC will relay the request to the Flight Crew, who will also evaluate the request. When deemed appropriate by the TC, lead FTE and flight crew, arrangements

lfstream

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 40 of 82

may be made to allow one or more individuals other than the TC to contact the Flight Crew directly. This will eliminate any delay associated with the TC having to relay an abort command to the Flight Crew.

- To begin testing, the TC will identify the test card to be evaluated, and confirm the initial conditions and maneuver. Once the maneuver has been conducted and satisfies the data requirements, the TC or Flight Crew, as required by the maneuver, will state "Complete". Subsequent to a maneuver and prior to proceeding to the next flight condition, the TC will announce "Stand By" to the Flight Crew and the Flight Crew will acknowledge.
- After satisfactory data review, the TC will announce "Cleared to [Next Test Condition]".

Note: [Next Test Condition] for example may be stated as: Test Card 15, Test Point A1, Mach 0.xx

 Once the Flight Crew, TC, FTEs and CEs agree that initial conditions are satisfied and required instrumentation is available, the maneuver will then be initiated by the TC with the callout "Ready for [Maneuver]".

Note: [Maneuver] may be stated as: Test Card 15, Test Point A1, Mach 0.xx, etc.

The Flight Crew will respond with "Beginning Maneuver".

Note: If timing is critical, this callout may be followed by an audible countdown initiated by the Flight Crew.

- If the test maneuver progresses in an unsatisfactory manner due to reasons other than safety, it can be terminated by the Flight Crew, TC, or recommended to the TC by an FTE. The Flight Crew can call **"Knock It Off"** and state the reason once the airplane has recovered to a stable condition. Likewise, the TC can call **"Knock It Off"** and also state the reason. A decision will then be made as to whether the maneuver will be repeated, skipped or the flight terminated, depending on the reason for stopping the maneuver.
- Should an abort call originate from the TM room, either by the TC or other delegated personnel, the term "ABORT, ABORT, ABORT" will be used. All TM room workstations have an ABORT button that will transmit a pre-selected audio message to the aircraft to indicate an abort. This requires immediate action by the Flight Crew to recover the airplane to a safe condition. In the event a safety issue is identified first by the Flight Crew, the pilot will immediately begin recovery procedures and then announce "Aborting Maneuver". Once the airplane is in a safe and stable condition, the cause for the abort will be discussed and a decision made whether to continue testing or return to base.
- As always, the Flight Crew has primary responsibility for the safety of the airplane and their judgment in aborting a maneuver or terminating the flight for any reason will not be questioned. The TC also has the authority to terminate the flight if anomalies are detected. Discussions may be held post recovery or in the debrief as necessary.
- The potential exists for lost telemetry signal between the test aircraft and the TM room due to weather, distance, altitude limitations, or other factors. If TM loss occurs, the TC shall notify the test aircraft of lost TM signal. When the TM room is safety of flight critical to the mission, the maneuver will be aborted with a "Knock It Off" call, and the aircraft will not conduct further testing until TM has been regained. Attempts to move the aircraft closer to the TM facility, or turn the aircraft in such a way to improve TM signal strength will be attempted. The aircraft will standby while trouble shooting if the TM loss occurs. If the TM signal can not be regained, the mission will be aborted and the onboard FTE will provide as much safety of flight oversight as possible. If TM is not safety of flight critical to the mission, then the maneuver. Should TM not be regained and the TM room is not safety of flight critical to the mission, the onboard FTE shall conduct the remainder of the mission as TC. All efforts to regain TM integrity during the mission will be attempted; however, loss of TM should not jeopardize completion of missions where TM is not critical for safety of flight.

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 41 of 82

• The possibility also exists for lost communication between the test aircraft and the TM room due to weather, distance, altitude limitations, or other factors. If communication is lost, and is not able to be regained, the same process will be followed as for the lost TM signal. The aircraft will check communication with local ATC to verify communication is limited to TM. Lost comm with TM will not require the mission to be aborted unless TM has been identified as a Safety of Flight requirement.

9.6 Post – Flight Debrief (Figure 2 Ref 31)

stream

Flight Test

The purpose of the test mission post-flight briefing is to ensure that all relevant information regarding the outcome of the test mission is communicated to the appropriate players. It is also the forum for any maintenance or engineering issues affecting the ability of the aircraft to conduct the next mission to be raised and assigned to the appropriate party for resolution.

The Aircraft Coordinator will schedule and communicate the time and location of the post-flight brief. This will be determined after reviewing with the test crew the time they need to properly prepare their notes. Attendees for the post flight shall include:

- Test Crew
- Aircraft Coordinator
- Aircraft Maintenance & Inspection Personnel
- Appropriate Cognizant Engineering Personnel

The post-flight debriefing will be led by the FTE and will address:

- 1) Flight Overview: flight times, status of completing all cards successfully
- 2) Maintenance Squawks and Engineering Issues (ref Section 9.6.1)
- 3) Test Results: Quantitative and qualitative observations from the test crew on what was or was not performed satisfactory
- 4) Lessons learned on the effectiveness of test point and risk mitigation procedures and if they need to be modified for follow-up flights

Note that when reviewing the test results, it is not necessary for the FTE to review chronologically the entire test flight. It's acceptable for the FTE to summarize a test card(s) was completed as briefed satisfactorily. At the conclusion of the post-flight, the aircraft coordinator will provide details for the next activity scheduled for the aircraft.

9.6.1 Maintenance Squawks vs Engineering Issues

The test crew is responsible for determining and reporting any discrepancies observed during a test mission as either a maintenance squawk or an engineering issue. This includes identifying any maintenance items that must be addressed prior to the next flight and determining the severity of any engineering issues.

Maintenance Squawks: Those discrepancies deemed to be maintenance related (ie., can be resolved by action defined either thru MRB actions or appropriate maintenance manuals). These will be recorded on GA 0982 Flight/Ground Discrepancies form and subsequently entered into Solumina. Flight Squawks are logged under the airplane tail number and special work order number assignment with the flight number imbedded (example: FTO-G650-6001-EXP-296, with the last three digits being the Flight Number).

Engineering issues: Those discrepancies that are not Maintenance Squawks will be reported to Engineering using the Problem Report (PR) process (ref GER-7786 Problem Reporting Process Description Document). It is the responsibility of the FTE to submit the PR into the database with the sufficient information and data to support the subsequent investigation, resolution, corrective action and verification activities. Since engineering will be accumulating PRs from other off-aircraft activities, before opening a new PR, it is a best

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 42 of 82

Flight Test

Gulfstream

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

practice to coordinate with the Cognizant PDT lead to insure that the PR does not already exist in the system. The severity of a PR is classified into the following criteria:

Severity 1: Safety of Flight issue. The airplane is grounded until an acceptable mitigation action is performed, documented in Teamtrack, and the PR gets subsequently downgraded. Flight Release is not allowed with an open Severity 1 PR.

Severity 2: Initial certification issue. The discrepancy requires corrective action as soon as practical and must be resolved prior to TIA certification test. TIAs will not be issued by the FAA with open Severity 2 PRs active.

<u>Severity 3:</u> An issue that is neither Severity 1 or 2, but corrective action should be scheduled based on workload and schedule for implementation. These are typically future product improvements or potential customer satisfaction issue.

<u>Severity 4</u>: An issue that is neither Severity 1, 2 or 3 and corrective action and implementation can be delayed without any significant impacts to the program.

For the GVI program, a database application called TEAMTRACK or ELEMENTOOL (for Honeywell avionics issues only) is utilized (Figure 17 shows a screen shot of the Teamtrack user interface for a given PR item). The flow picture at the top represents the workflow of the issues and the fields below contain the entire history of the investigation of the issue. Cognizant Engineering groups are held accountable for the leading the investigation of PRs entered within a given design group. It is the FTE's responsibility to accurately enter the flight observations and reference data



FIGURE 17 – ENGINEERING PR TEAMTRACK SCREENSHOT

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 43 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

9.6.2 Post-Flight Inspection

Post-flight inspection requirements are governed by the Production Quality Assurance Manual – Quality Instruction 9.1.4 and Form GA 0542. For the GVI, specific points of inspection are identified in Quality Assurance Traveler 60E5300968N005-GV. Post flight inspection will be completed and discrepancies entered into Solumina prior to post-flight maintenance action.

9.7 FTE Flight Reports

FTE flight reports are to be written and distributed by the FTE as soon as practical following a flight. Rapid communication of flight results to Engineering and key management and program personnel is a critical part of the flight test process and therefore the FTE should release the Flight Reports within 24 hours of completing the mission. Any incident that occurs during a test mission is required to be reported separately and before the next flight (see Para 9.7.1 below).

The FTE report is not intended to be a narrative description of the entire flight. Rather, the key elements of the FTE report shall include (see Appendix A for example):

- General Information: Flight Number, times, crew, W&B and mission objectives
- Summary addressing whether all planned tests were (or were not) successfully accomplished
- Specific observations relevant to mission, including any necessary data to assist definition or understanding of any issues
- Issues: Maintenance, Engineering, Instrumentation

9.7.1 Reporting of Accident and Incidents during Flight Test Execution

The reporting of an aircraft accident or incident is governed by the corporate policies listed in Figure 18. These documents define responsibilities for responding to accidents and reporting these events to the appropriate authorities (FAA and/or NTSB). Flight Operations, Technical Operations, and Legal are the primary organizations leading this response.



Figure 18 – Corporate Policies for Accident / Incident Response

In the event of an accident or major incident, the Flight Test organization will execute the following steps:

- 1. Immediately take all measures to respond to the accident or incident (call / coordinate / provide for crash, fire, medical response)
- Provide initial contact as defined in CP14-13 plus ensure immediate contact is provided to senior management personnel: Sr. VP Programs, Engineering & Test, VP Flight Operations, VP Engineering, Chief Engineer, Program Manager, Director of Flight Test, and Director of Aviation Safety Office.

Flight Test

Hulfstream

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 44 of 82

- 3. Secure the accident scene and equipment
- 4. Cooperate with Authorities, but maintain all communication and information confidential until cleared thru Gulfstream Programs Engineering & Test, Legal and Corporate Communication personnel.
- 5. Secure and sequester all data to include flight cards, notes, on-board and telemetered data, pictures, videos, local computer workstations, aircraft maintenance record.
- 6. Those personnel with first-hand account of the accident or incident shall provide a written report to their supervisor containing all relevant facts from their perspective with 24 hours
- 7. Data storage, access and distribution of all pertinent data shall be controlled by the Director of Flight Test
- 8. Comply with further instructions from Flight Operations lead responders in the implementation of the Aircraft Accident Response Plan

The reporting and investigation of Occupational Safety and Health Administration recordable injuries, product damage or near-miss incidents is outlined by CP 12-7. In the event of an occurrence, the responsible Flight Test Manager shall contact the Director of Flight Test with 24 hours.

9.7.2 Flight Test Issue Notification Report

Any incident or unexpected result occurring during a test mission will be reported by the Flight Test Engineer before the next flight. For this purpose, an "incident" is defined as any significant unexpected behavior, such as imminent loss of control (stall, roll-off or pitch up), PIO tendency and any difficulties during takeoff or landing operations. This notification shall include the following information and distribution (see Appendix A for example):

- a. Test Crew
- b. Test Description (test conditions, configuration, test procedure)
- c. Appropriate level of detail pertaining to the incident
- d. Any operational limitations until the incident is further understood
- e. Email notification subject line shall specifically state "Flight Test Incident Notification: A/C xxxx, Flight xxx"
- f. Distribution to the Sr. VP Programs, Engineering & Test, VP Flight Operations, Chief Test Pilot, VP Engineering, Chief Engineer, Program Manager, Director of Flight Test, Director of Aviation Safety Office, Manger of FTEs. Note that it will be the responsibility for the chief test pilot to update the FAA by contacting the Flight Test Branch Manager on the incident. Additionally Flight Ops, FT Management, and Chief Engineer will communicate results to appropriate FTEs, Test Pilots, and Engineering personnel.

These reports are currently located in the following network directory:

10.0 PHASE VI: TRACKING

10.1 Flight Records

The pertinent records for each mission shall be stored electronically on the Gulfstream network to allow for accessibility and retention (backup and archive). These records shall include:

- FTE's completed flight cards (including W&B, TSHAs and IFRs)
- FTE Flight Report
- Incident Report if applicable

Julfstream

Fliaht Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 45 of 82

• Data relevant to the mission that should be retained with the records above

These records shall be stored within 24 hours of completing a mission and purged of any "draft" material. For the GVI program, completed flight records are stored in the following network directory location:

10.2 Flight Logs (Figure 2 Ref 32)

A flight log shall be maintained by the FTE for each airplane and stored with the Flight Records. This log shall contain information for each flight such as:

- Date & Flight or Ground Test Numbers
- Type of Flight (company or certification)
- Event Times (ie, flight & block times)
- Cycle Events (full stop landings, touch & go's, go-arounds)
- Test Crew
- Weight & Balance Information
- Planned and completed tests
- Comments relative to the flight

10.3 Test Point Status (Figure 2 Ref 33)

The relevant data showing the status of activities within Flight Test shall be maintained by the respective departments. This data typically consists of:

- Planned versus Actual flights, flight hours and test points (for each aircraft and total program)
- Planned versus actual releases for key deliverables (mechanical models, material status, open aircraft work, test plans, test reports)

10.4 Data Approval (Figure 2 Ref 34)

The FTE is responsible for leading the effort to assess the data real-time or following a flight to determine if the test points were executed properly and resulting data are acceptable. This assessment shall be communicated in a timely manner to all appropriate personnel to insure near-term missions or longer-range planning can be adjusted as required.

11.0 PHASE VII: ANALYSIS, REPORTING, CLOSEOUT

11.1 Flight Data Release (Figure 2 Ref 36)

Flight Test Data is recorded from multiple streams input to HEIM solid state data recorders and output into a common time correlated UDP Ethernet data stream to an IADS data server for real-time use on-board the



FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 46 of 82

aircraft (ref Figure 19). Following each flight, the data from the on-board recorders are downloaded onto network drive locations for use by Engineers authorized to access the data using the same IADS tools. There are multiple help and how-to files regarding data access, playback and processing via MATLAB scripts stored in the following.

11.2 Data Validation

Gulfstream

Before beginning any analysis, drawing conclusions or making decisions based on recorded data, it must be verified that the data is valid. It is the responsibility of the engineer to evaluate the measured data to insure:

- Reasonableness of measurement (sign convention, units, neutral and extreme recordings)
- Alias, bias or shift has not been introduced
- Signal Integrity has not been compromised
- Frequency of sampling rates and filtering is appropriate

Issues on data validity are to be immediately addressed with the FTIE. If the measured data is confirmed invalid, the parameter is to be identified invalid and restricted from use.



Figure 19 – GVI Data System Overview

11.3 Data Analysis

Flight Test Engineers shall provide measured data, calculated parameters or data that's been analyzed thru approved methods for external release and / or inclusion in the Flight Test Reports. For the GVI program,

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 47 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

there are multiple help and how-to files regarding data access, playback and processing via MATLAB scripts stored in the following.

11.4 Flight Test Report (Figure 2 Ref 35)

fstream

With certain exceptions pertaining to small test projects, closeout of a test will be via release of the Flight Test Report. These reports shall contain the necessary data and information to document the tests accomplished and substantiate the test results and conclusions (design and/or regulatory requirements). The standard test report format is presented in Appendix A.

To insure comprehensive coordination of the test results, Flight Test Reports shall be reviewed and signed by Flight Operations, Cognizant Engineering Representative with final approval by the Manager of Flight Test Engineering or his designee.

11.5 Data Storage, Management and Retention

The Flight Test Engineering Data System Specialist shall be responsible to coordinate the necessary network storage space requirements and access privileges with Gulfstream Information Technologies personnel. Aircraft recorded data will be copied onto the corporate network drive. Once this copy is created and verified, the aircraft media hard drives are re-cycled back into service. Short-term and long-term backup recovery for data downloaded onto the network drive will be coordinated and handled thru corporate network IT processes. Any data not stored on the network drive (ie., source tapes from video and/or special recorders) shall be retained by Flight Test for a period of approximately 10 years.

11.6 Airplane De-Modification (Figure 2 Ref 37)

The Aircraft Coordinator and FTIE shall coordinate with all affected organizations to determine the best method for restoration of the test aircraft to the approved configuration baseline. Affected organizations are the organizations whose system has been affected by a Fight Test installation. For example if a hydraulic sensor spliced into a pressure supply line is removed, FTIE will coordinate the Hydraulics group to design a permanent repair to remove the sensor and splice the line. Since this activity may involve repairs associated with the removal of flight test equipment, it is important to address this early in the process to insure the required engineering designs are completed and associated material is available.

The Aircraft Coordinator will ensure that all necessary FTWAs are issued to restore the test aircraft to the approved configuration and remove Flight Test specific equipment. Implementing the work, processing the FTWA and QC sign-off (including updating the configuration control database) will be complied with as described in Section 8 on Airplane Modifications. When the test aircraft has been restored to the approved configuration, copies of all inspection-stamped FTWAs will be provide to QC and the originals maintained in the project files of Flight Test Engineering.



FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 48 of 82

200

Flight Test

APPENDIX A FLIGHT TEST FORMS

Appendix A.1

Request for Flight Test Services (RFTS) FORM

		FI	ight Test			
		Request for F	light Tes	Services		
	(Submit via e	email to:			1	
Requestor Name:			Dept:		Ext:	
COG Engineer:	(552)					
Project Engineer:	19929					***************************************
Director Approval:						
Job Charge Number		R/C P	roj. Pri. S	Sec.		
Requested Test Dat	e:	mm/dd	/уу	-		
Associated Drawin	g Numbers and/o	r References:				
Information/Data R	equested:					
Instrumentation Re	quirements (indic	cate required test	aircraft c	onfiguration):		



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 49 of 82

Flight Test

Appendix A.2 Test Safety Hazard Analysis (THSA) FORM

Gulfstream

n): Rist:	ТSHA-000144 Медіцт	Stall Demonstration Probability: Remote	n with Functiona	l/Proven Alpha Limiter Hasaid Levet H	azardous	
Hazərdi,	Departure from controlled I	light				
Cause:	AOA limiter fails to prevent AOA overshool due to turb Dynamic pilot input to stalt	aircreft from reachling ar ulence ÁOA	zodynamic stall	ng Alist Agite Istice	ine , llain	
Effect:	Aerodynamic Stall				4	
Prevertative Ar	tions / Minimizing Procedures					
	Testing shall not be car Inspect leading edges a FOS software version 5 Testing must be conduct Conduct testing in a buil Minimum essential crew Minimum attitude shall i Do not exceed 1.00 NA If departure from control	iducted until the alpha lin ind gap bands. Trim exci 24x or later is required. 3ed in Day VMC, and wit Idup fashion 7, 3e 10000 MSL. OA Jied flight is experienced	vter function has 255 Scalent if ner h smooth air . Immediately pe	i been proven via ded sessary. rform recovery proces	cated testing ures	
Corrective Techniques:	1 If AOA trend is likely to 2. If serodynamic stall (pri AOA	exceed NADA=1 00, 960 chud, Wing drop, or yaw)	in maneuver and is encountered i	I reduce ADA. mmediately apply for	vaid column to reduce	
	- Mobile					
			· · · ·			n generation The second se
Cog Engineer:			Test Conductor Cop	ediantor;		<u>ničin</u> . J
Pilo				Aaraqer:		



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 50 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

Appendix A.3 Interim Flight Restriction (IFR) Form

and the second state	k unanggg⊑o gi digunang diganzagon
DATE: 2/07/11	LOG: GVI-IFR-FCS-001 A FLIGHT RESTRICTION
TITLE: <u>FLYING INTO KNÖ</u>	WN LIGHTNING CONDITIONS IS PROHIBITED
DISCIPLINE: FCS	P/FT ENG:
RESTRICTION:	an a
Flight into known lightning conditions is	prohibited until FECU and MCE's have passed lightning
testing. Rev A: MCE's added due to Aircr those tested during the MCE qualification installation of V2 units on all a/c	raft Level Lightning tests indicated exposure levels greater th n test program. HSCU and FCC deleted from this IFR based o
Limit proximity to 20 miles	
BASIS FOR RESTRICTION	
FECU- Awaiting V2 unit on 6003 MCE - Aircraft Level Lightning tests ind	licated increased, and untested exposure levels
a second a la constante de la c A seconda de la constante de la	<u>ೆ ಸಂಭವರ (ಮರ್ಥ) ಸಂಭಾನಗಳು ಹಾಸರು ಸಾರ್ಥಿಸಿದೆ. ಸಾರ್ಥಿಸಿದ ಸರ್ಕಾರಿಯ ಸಾರ್ಥಿಸಿದೆ. ಸರ್ಕಾರಿಯ ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ. ಸಂಕಾರಿಯ ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ. ಸ ಸ್ಥಾನವರ್ಷ ಸಂಭಾನ ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ. ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ ಸಂಭಾಗಿ ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ. ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ. ಸಂಭಾಗಿ ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ. ಸಂಭಾಗಿ ಸಂಭಾಗಿ ಸಂಭಾಗಿ ಸಂ ಸ್ಥಾನವರ್ಷ ಸಂಭಾಗಿದೆ. ಸಂಭಾಗಿ ಸ</u>
CLEARANCE ACTION: Rev A	
- A/c 6003 to receive V2 FECU	
- All a/c to be retrofitted with lightning	compliant MCE's (V2.2)
- All affected wiring harnesses in the fuse	elage shall receive overbraid - ECR 622090
	_X 6003:X 6004:X SUBS:X
A/C EFFECTED: 6001:_X 6002:	
A/C EFFECTED: 6001:_X_ 6002: REVISION: A	
A/C EFFECTED: 6001:_X_ 6002: REVISION: A SIGNATURES:	/
A/C EFFECTED: 6001:_X_ 6002:_ REVISION: A SIGNATURES:	ORIGINATOR
A/C EFFECTED: 6001:_X_ 6002: REVISION: A SIGNATURES:	ORIGINATOR CHIEF ENGINEER
A/C EFFECTED: 6001:_X_ 6002: REVISION: A SIGNATURES:	ORIGINATOR CHIEF ENGINEER FLIGHT TEST
A/C EFFECTED: 6001:_X_ 6002: REVISION: A SIGNATURES:	ORIGINATOR CHIEF ENGINEER FLIGHT TEST FLIGHT OPS

FIGURE 22 - INTERIM FLIGHT RESTRICTION EXAMPLE

Mode	l: G\	N State	910°0'////	6001 Fli	ght 101	e nevezi e e e	Card:	2		TIME	P. C. Bassin C. Barlou C. Bas NOTES BUT MARKED C. American
\$ s		Fl	LUTTER	: Dual Ac	tuation Te	st Block				(
1. Area				TP	42				ý,	1	
	SET	UP		NOT	ES		NOTES		ir .		
FLAPS	<u>} 0</u>				lode	Recover	ry Chute I	READY	1	; ;	
		, חשדר			N I T Goine				1	<u>}</u>	
A/S						BIO	СКА			÷	
PWR:	A	Ŕ				, n itrional					
RUN		e in interiorent	A CARACTER	TEST	DESCRIPT	rion		illeria contra	eine 	}	
े हे जि न्द		.								\$ 	TP 42 FL350 +4 -1 0.99M Fuel > 39,000 lbs
	SH RIS	K	- C Th	:		.	ي بال			<u>.</u>	2C Speed brake Extension (at end of fuel band)
e rnc	IT 10 83	ach run, CO	onni Liv	i signal a	no notter m	unitoring re	auy			Å	Wind 0 Z.0 11.5 15.3 18.6 23.8
A	Cor	ntrol Pulse	s - FTI	в		r		tran.		йн на	Wing 180 4.7 13.9 17.0 19.0
14 M 1	1)	Aileron					Block B			3	Tail 0: 26.8: 34.8: 45.8
	2)	Elevator					Contractor of the local division of the	J.			Tail 180 2.7 3.7 5.3 7.5 18.4 46.6
N. Sec. B.	3)	Rudder							10 A 10	4. 	
										<u>.</u>	
ŠВ	LO	G Frequen	icv Swe	eps – Flu	tter Exciter	Control Pa	nel Inputs	5	語語		TP 44 FL279 381 KCAS Fuel > 40,000 lbs
and the second		T	1	1	1	1	1	·		į	2D Dwells
A Long		Surface	MODE	'SYM	FORCE *	F-START	F-STOP	DUR	100		Wing 0 21.2
a distant	1)	WING	106	n	нісн	10	30.0	15		1	Tail U 27.3 34.7 42.7
No.	<u> ''</u>					4.0			1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 - 1999 -		Tail 100 2.5 3.5 5.6 7.2 10.4 45.7
	2)			180						}	
	3)	ТАП	106	0	нюн	7.5	60.0	15	Sec. 1	ė	
経合変					nion	7.0				 	
	4A)			180		3.4	15.0	10		5. 7	
and the second second	48)					15	00	10			
1998).	40)]		<u> </u>		1		10	日本	;]-	
	* F(ORCE level i	may chan	ige to LOV	V at higher a	irspeed / Ma	ch		44 - F		Block C
Same and	Cł	hanging FOF	RCE will n	equire one	e cycle (shori	duration) to	adjust var	ie slots	44 35	·	
										Ì	
C C	Spe	eedbrake l	Extensio	n – Rapi	đ				New York	<u>k</u>	
	Slo	w to previo	us appro	ved spea	d - Standb	y for DWEI	L Freque	encies	1		
				-			,			ł	
1 n	D14	E11 Car		Cat in 1	Chart					[
je u	UW	CLL FIEQU	lencies	Set in I	•Start				2.45	8 (
19. m	Мо	de: CONT	DUR:	< 10 hz	3 sec >	> 10 hz: 2	sec			- 	
and the second			2			- ~~-	-			<u>;</u> v	L
2442										ý.	

Appendix A.4

Flight Test Cards

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 51 of 82

FIGURE 23 - FLIGHT TEST CARDS EXAMPLE



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 52 of 82

=

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

Gulfstream	Ĵ					FLIG	HT TESI	CARDS
Reg No: N650GA	raine (i selandera dif	Serial No:	6001	F	light No:	271	Date: 1	3 OCT 11
ZERO FUEL WEIGHT		TAKEOFF GROSS V	VEIGHT		FLAP	S FLE	×[Rated]	1.56
ZERO FUEL C.G.	٢	TAKEO	FF C.G.		V1/V	२	VSE	
FUEL LOAD - LEFT	Block	TOTA	LFUEL		v	2	VREF	
RIGHT	જીવસંચનન જ				FIEL	5	TO TRIM	
<u>我们要你看得我就说了这些这个这样的</u> 我不能不完全的。"	بالمجارية والمراجع	n i slja pri kladi prem sa je svenski se se se s			and an and a state of the second s	LIMITATIONS / R	ESTRICTIO	NS STATES
					. at			
					1. 100	HAZARDS/ 7 Offset Landings	TSHA's	neutra escandra que ne
					5. 12 5. 04 6. 13 1. Fi 7. Ci 4. Fi 5. Fi 7. Ci	Attracte Mode Testing Single Engine /	HIGH EQUIPMEN I Fire Axe Ile if required Block E In place)	T T opartment oggles ea insulation
PURPOSE OF TEST: 1. Flight Controls Company -Failure Mode X-wind Lar -Rudder Jam (Takeoff Jar -Offset Landing (Normal, -PIO Evaluations – Norm	Compan Testing – 5. Indings (Rud m) Landing Alternate & al, Alternate	y 242 Jer Jam & Alternate - ML - No Crosswind - MLW EB Mode) - MLW & EB Mode - HVY	FWD C	;G	Block	F		
CREW: Contraction of the P	128-222-9 - 9449	en bringener i m	Agricant States Allows	ందినం చెల్లిందినం	a cutto anti a che	All I Men Again Corr	e a provinsi de	and the second second
		······				Go Around's	-	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
		ENG STA	RT	1		Touch & Go's	-	
		ENG SHUT DOV	VN	1		Total Landings	-	
2 14 4			F		7	Total Latingo		
4 V		CHOCKS	IN E	slock G		LANDING		
·	·	11	•XI 👘	enerie de Arti		TAKEOFF		
		BLOCK TI	ME	·····		TOTAL FLIGHT		
Pilot In Command Risk Acceptance				FIE	Configuration	Acceptance		
Lindsel								
Arcran Configuration Release								
ananana Ananana								

FIGURE 24 - FLIGHT TEST CARD COVER SHEET EXAMPLE

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 53 of 82

٦

Flight Test

Г

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

Appendix A.5 Example Incident Report

Crew: TM-Support Loading:	ZEGW: 59740 lbs ZECG: 34.2
lssue Summa	se an an an an an an an ann an ann an an a
oscillation occu	red at approximately 5 hz. The oscillation was initially perceived by the pilots as turbulence;
as it got worse	t was identified as a roll oscillation. The pilots disconnected the AP and the oscillation
Immediately sto	pped. The aircraft was at FL290 and 340 KCAS when the oscillation occurred. <u>Elementool</u> I
508 was create	d to track the correction and closure of this issue.
oscillation occi	red at approximately 5 hz. The oscillation was initially perceived by the pilots as turbulence;
as it got worse	t was identified as a roll oscillation. The pilots disconnected the AP and the oscillation
immediately sto	pped. The aircraft was at FL290 and 340 KCAS when the oscillation occurred. <u>Elementool</u> I
508 was create	d to track the correction and closure of this issue.
Initial review of	The data showed that the oscillation was being driven by the AP The AP was exciting a
oscillation occi	red at approximately 5 hz. The oscillation was initially perceived by the pilots as turbulence;
as it got worse	t was identified as a roll oscillation. The pilots disconnected the AP and the oscillation
immediately stu	pped. The aircraft was at FL290 and 340 KCAS when the oscillation occurred. <u>Elementool</u> I
508 was create	d to track the correction and closure of this issue.
Initial review of	The data showed that the oscillation was being driven by the AP The AP was exciting a
structural mode	The oscillation was most clearly seen in the roll rate signal. The maximum roll rate amplitu
was 1,5 deg/se	2. The roll angle amplitude was only 0.1 deg. The event only lasted 5.5 seconds, but was st
diverging at AF	disconnect.

FIGURE 25 - INCIDENT REPORT EXAMPLE



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 54 of 82

Appendix A.6 Flight Test Plan Template

Refer to the Engineering Documentation Standards Templates intranet page

Test PalnTemplate.

for the complete Flight

GA 2047H 02/00 (CG)

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 55 of 82



FIGURE 26 - GENERAL FLIGHT TEST PLAN TEMPLATE EXAMPLE

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 56 of 82

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL





00			neiairí rian rempi	ate
	1	TABLE OF CONTENTS		
1.0	INTRODUCTION			2
1.1	Test Objective			2
2.0	APPLICABLE REGULATIONS AND	over documentation	•••••••	2
3.0	CONFIGURATION		•••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••••	2
3.1	System Description	ر هم. ۱. ز. د کار	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	2
3.2	Test Article Configuration	and the second		2
6.0	INSTRUMENTATION			2
5.0	TEST PROCEDURES			2
5.1	Regulation Paragraph Title	A STATE	n an	2
5.1	1 Test Procedure			2
5.1	1.2 Test Analysis Methodology	n an		2
5.1	1.3 Success Unterla	and the second		
5.0	RISK ASSESSMENT			2
7.0	REFERENCES			2
	NDIX A INSTRUMENTATION PARA	METER LIST	*****	2
				2
AFFEI		N. 1967		

fstream

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 57 of 82



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 58 of 82

=

3.0	CONFIGURATION
	This section provides pictures, graphics, or drawings of the modification or the test aircraft. Provide a general list of modifications or differences from the baseline aircraft model.
3.1	System Description
	This section describes the details of the system being tested. Include references to supporting figures, part numbers, and serial numbers if appropriate. In the case of compliance requirements, refer to the Certification plan for items that require conformity inspection.
3.2	Test Article Configuration
	This section describes the general configuration of the test article. Identify components relevant to the test outcome, including ballast requirements and any special flight test equipment installed. Reference Configuration Control terms (Flight Test Work Authorization (FTWA), etc.) in the applicable section of the Flight Test Standard Operating Procedure, as required. Provide configuration information for systems with known non-conformance to production standards. Include an adequate review of these systems to assure non-conformances do not affect the outcome of the proposed test.
4.0	INSTRUMENTATION This section describes the instrumentation system used to measure test parameters. Avoid including the instrumentation parameter list in the body of the plan, especially if the list of parameters is lengthy. Instead, include the list in Appendix A: Instrumentation Parameter List, or refer to the Instrumentation
5.0	report as appropriate. If necessary, include diagrams of the measurement locations as required in order to orient the reader. If known, reference at least the top level instrumentation drawing. TEST PROCEDURES
	This section provides information about the testing arranged according to the information provided in the Regulation Paragraph Title column of Table 1 in Section 2.0, Applicable Regulations or Documentation, or as discussed in the text of that section.
	For example, if 14 CFR 25.103 is listed in the Table 1, then the following subsections are required:
	6.1 Stall Speed Determination
	6.1.1 Test Procedure
	5.1.2 Test Analysis Methodology
0000	MENT NO. XXX-FT- XXX ITAR/EAR Control PAGE2 REV-

~

V.S.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 59 of 82

	5.1.3 Success Criteria
5.1	Regulation Paragraph Title
	The title of this section is derived from the Regulation Paragraph Title listed in Table 1. At a minimum, there will be one subsection for each Regulation Paragraph Title listed in Table 1.
	This section describes test requirement details and state compliance requirements. Refer to test points in Appendix B. The Test point table should include a test point number based on ATA code, weight/center of gravity, flap, gear spoiler positions, trim airspeed and altitude, power settings, and any other unique test requirements. A brief test procedure should also be included in the test point table.
	Test Procedure
	This section describes the detailed, step-by-step test procedures required to complete the test. These procedures should not only reference other documents for procedural guidance. The procedures included here provide the direct input to the flight test card.
.1.2	Test Analysis Methodology
	This section describes the data reduction routines, equations, or data plots that transform the flight test data into the final form for evaluation. Refer to the Flight Test data reduction plan if appropriate. Describe, in general terms, the data to be included in the test report.
5.1.3	Success Criteria This section describes clearly the criteria used to determine test pass or fail or to characterize some aspect of the system operation. Use regulatory language as much as practical when defining success criteria for compliance test plans:
6.0	RISKASSESSMENT
	This section identifies the proposed tests with Low/Medium/High risk assessments and addresses the need for a safety review board. Refer to the applicable section of the Flight Test Standard Operating Procedure manual for details. Include applicable TSHA forms in Appendix C: Test Safety Hazard Analysis. The TSHA should include information such as crew experience requirements, minimum crew requirements, special equipment requirements (for example, helmets, parachutes, spin chute, etc.), safety chase aircraft, safety of flight data, telemetry requirements, flight limitations, build up procedures, etc.

Flight Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 60 of 82

7.0 REFERENCES	
This section provides a list of all reference docume	nts using the following format:
Document Number, Document Title, Document Rel	lease Date
Otherwise, refer to the Chicago Manual of Style or o structuring your list of references. Two examples of documenting resources follow:	call Engineering Process Control for guidance in the Chicago Manual of Style methodology for
Book: Last Name, First Name, Title. Ed	lition. Location: Publisher, Year.
Online Book: Last Name, First Name, 3	77% - Edition Location: Publisher, Year. URL (accessed
Month Day, Year).	
87 1	
	a dan sana ang kana sa sana sa

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 61 of 82

_

Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

Control Stream Exercision Production Production <th></th> <th>Contraction of the local distance of the loc</th> <th>The second se</th> <th>and the second se</th> <th>the summer summer set of the</th> <th>1. And a subscription of the subscription of t</th> <th>The stand of the s</th> <th></th> <th>- Andrew Contraction of the Andrew Contracti</th> <th>「「この」のことで、こので、こので、こので、こので、</th> <th>Contraction of the second seco</th> <th>おうちょう あんちょうちょう</th> <th>State of the state of the state</th> <th>COLUMN TO A DOWNERS</th> <th>And the second s</th> <th>「「「「ないないないないないないないない」</th> <th>and the second s</th> <th>and the second s</th>		Contraction of the local distance of the loc	The second se	and the second se	the summer summer set of the	1. And a subscription of the subscription of t	The stand of the s		- Andrew Contraction of the Andrew Contracti	「「この」のことで、こので、こので、こので、こので、	Contraction of the second seco	おうちょう あんちょうちょう	State of the state	COLUMN TO A DOWNERS	And the second s	「「「「ないないないないないないないない」	and the second s	and the second s
Statute Solution Solution Solution Solution Inclusion Solution Solution Solution Solution Solution Inclusion Solution Solution Solution Solution Solution Solution Solution Inclusion Solution								ucoutsten-										
	*	EAC CODE	Safeya	Tatenery	PORANETER	And the Construction of th	PADAMETER LUISTIFICATION (Cert. Campany	Sistint, TYPE Multi-	ENG8	REGIMED	LEXPECTED Measure Meas	Runse Billan	T Int		EQUIRED SIGNAL MUMUTH ALC	CHIDM IF D	MATEC 7 MINS CONTRA	and seen in the
	1													1				
	1				F				1								14	
	1		-									11		-				
	1			and the second	the set of the set							- 1 - 1 - 1				and the first		1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1
	1									And a subscription of the								
	1								Ī				-					
	T																	
	1												-					
				-									<u>شين</u>		- Aller			
	I											1						a sa
												1.2	-					
	L																	
	1						Na ang salah ang											
	1																	
								6										
			1				1 manual marine	1 				277 277						and the second se
	177			1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1								10.1						
												- 1 - 1 - 1 - 1 - 1						
												22						مى بىرى يەرىپىرى قىلىرى قىلىرى مەرىپىرىكى يەرىپىرى قىلىرى قىلىرى
							a a construction of the second se					- 14 - 1						
	6 N. Y. J												-					
	÷ 27,																	and the second se
	1777		-															
			ښتا														1 1 1 1	
												2						
								- 2				-3.7						
					1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1. 1		1					7						
	17.5				à													
				1			1											

FIGURE 27 - GENERAL FLIGHT TEST PLAN TEMPLATE INSTRUMENTATION PARAMETERS LIST

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 62 of 82

Flight Test





FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 63 of 82

for the complete Flight

Appendix A.7 Flight Test Report Template

Refer to the Engineering Documentation Standards Templates intranet page

Test Report Template.

GA 2047H 02/00 (CG)



Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 64 of 82

OCUMENT NO:	XXX-FTX-XX	X FAA PROJECT NO	: MA
URRENT REVIS	ION: As Noted	INITIAL CATE:	XXX, ##, 20##
AC CAGE CODE	: 59734	MODEL:	MA
ENDOR REFERE	NCE: N/A	ATA NO:	MA
ERT FICATION D	ATA TOP ASSEMBLY N	O (if applicable):	<u>.</u>
	General Flig	ht Test Report Terr	plate
		E. A.	
		Martin Barris	
		₩ ⁻¹	
		οleg ^α , γ	
DEPARTMENT:	343	TECHNICAL APPROVA	
DEPARTMENT:	343	TECHNICAL APPROVA	L:
DEPARTMENT: SECTION:	343 Fight Test Engineering	TECHNICAL APPROVAL	L:

FIGURE 29 - GENERAL FLIGHT TEST REPORT TEMPLATE EXAMPLE

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 65 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL





	Ŧ	ABLE OF CONTENTS		
1.0	SUMMARY	******		1
2.0	INTRODUCTION			1
2.1 2.2	Test Objective			
2.3 2.4	Test Scope System Description			
2.5 2.6	Instrumentation Risk Assessment	le la constance de la constance		
3.0	TEST RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	с, ж.б. к 	na an a	3
3.1 3.2	Regulation Paragraph Title			
4.0	CONCLUSIONS			
5.0	RECOMMENDATIONS	n se		4
6.0	REFERENCES	<u> </u>		4
APPE	NDIX A INSTRUMENTATION PARAM	METER LIST	*****	5
	NDIV & TECT CALETY HAZADD AN			6
AFFE	NDIA B TEST SAFETT MALARD AN	AL 1313		

Flight Test

F

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 66 of 82

	novicani	General FT Report Templa			
r yn ddia. Gereddiau	n an				
1.0	SUMMARY				
17. 17.	This section provides a brief, executive summary of the test results, but should be detailed enough to provide the reader with enough information to determine if further reading is necessary. The information in this summary includes a brief description of the purpose of the test (for example, compliance, function check, research and development, etc.) the type or subject of the test, the significant results, conclusions and major recommendations.				
	If graphics are included in this document, use the folio	wing to mat:			
	G Ante Sante Viscopuit (G) Sante (G) Sante Sante (G) Sante Sante				
Nr 1	FROUTE1-EXAMPLEGRAPHE WI	N TITLE PLACED BELOW			
2.0	INTRODUCTION				
	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the cuseful to help the reader understand why the tests we	and type of subject of the testing menuoned of discussed in this section. The information should test results reported. Background information is re convened if or example, in-service problem.			
Reo	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the useful to help the reader understand why the tests we research and development support certification, etc.) If necessary, you may insert the applicable portion of Table 1. TABLE 1 - EXAMPLE APPLICABLE R Ilation Paragraph Number Amendment	Goussed in this section. The Information should test results reported. Background information is re convened ifor example. In service problem the table from the text plan document as shown EQULATION INFORMATION Regulation Paradraph Title			
Reg 14 CF	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the useful to help the reader understand why the tests we research and development support certification, etc.) If necessary, you may insert the applicable portion of Table 1. TABLE 1 – EXAMPLE APPL CABLER Unition Paragraph Number Amendment R Part 25 / CS (As Required)	Geoussed in this section. The Information should test results reported. Background information is re convened ifor example. In service problem the table from the text plan document as shown EQULATION INFORMATION (Regulation Paragraph Title			
Reg 14 CF 103 (a	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the useful to help the reader understand why the tests we research and development, support certification, etc.) If necessary, you may insert the applicable portion of Table 1. TABLE 1 – EXAMPLE APPLICABLE R ulation Paragraph Number Amendment R Part 25 / CS (As Reguired)),(b), (c), (d)	discussed in this section. The Information should test results reported. Background information is re convened if or example. In service problem the table from the text plan document as shown EQULATION INFORMATION Regulation Paragraph Title Stall Speed Determination			
Regi 14 CF 103 (a. [regu]2	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the useful to help the reader understand why the tests we research and development, support certification, etc.) If necessary, you may insert the applicable portion of Table 1. TABLE 1 - EXAMPLE APPL CABLE R Ulation Paragraph Number R Part 25 / CS (As Required) 0,(b), (c), (d)	discussed in this section. The Information should test results reported. Background information is re convened for example. In service problem the table from the text plan document as shown EQULATION INFORMATION Regulation Paragraph Title Stall Speed Determination (regulation paragraph title);			
Reg 14 CF 103 (a (regul/ 2,1	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the useful to help the reader understand why the tests we research and development support certification, etc.) If necessary, you may insert the applicable portion of Table 1. TABLE 1 – EXAMPLE APPLICABLE R Ulation Paragraph Number Amendment R Part 25 / CS (As Regulred) A(b), (c), (d) thon paragraph number]	discussed in this section. The Information should test results reported. Background information is re convened if or example, in service problem the table from the text plan document as shown EQULATION INFORMATION Regulation Paragraph Title Stall Speed Determination (fregulation paragraph title)			
Regi 14 CF 103 (a [regu]2 2,1	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the useful to help the reader understand why the tests we research and development support certification, etc.) If necessary, you may insert the applicable portion of Table 1. TABLE 1 – EXAMPLE APPL CABLE R Unition Paragraph Number Amendment R Part 25 / CS (As Required) 0,(b), (c), (d) ition paragraph number] Test Objective State the detailed objective of the tests, including the a paraphrasing of the applicable FAR(s). This section the testing purpose. The test plan should be leterence oriteria for the testing.	Iscussed in this section. The Information should test results reported. Background information is re convened if or example. In service problem the table from the text plan document as shown EQULATION INFORMATION Regulation: Paragraph Title Stall Speed Determination (fregulation paragraph title) (fregulation paragraph title) applicable Federal Aviation: Regulation(s) (FAR) provides the specific criteria necessary to achie ad here along with a restatement of the passifall			
Regi 14 CF (103 (a (regul) 2,1	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the useful to help the reader understand why the tests we research and development support certification, etc.) If necessary, you may insert the applicable portion of Table 1. TABLE 1 – EXAMPLE APPL CABLER Idation Paragraph Number Amendment R Part 25 / CS (As Required) (b), (c), (d) Amendment Test Objective State the detailed objective of the tests, including the a paraphrising of the applicable FAR(s). This section the testing purpose. The test plan should be interence oriteria for the testing. For example, if the test purpose is to support an FAA (STC) project then the objective is to show compliant research and development oriented, refer to the applicable characteristics of testing. Refer to appropriate guidant	Iscussed in this section. The information should test results reported. Background information is re convened ifor example. In service problem the table from the text plan document as shown EQULATION INFORMATION Regulation: Paragraph: Title Stall Speed Determination (fregulation paragraph: title): (regulation paragraph: title) provides the specific criteria necessary to achie d here along with a restatement of the passifall type certificate (TC) or supplemental type certific collerengineering documents for specific criteria cable engineering documents for specific criteria ce material of to project specific issue Papers:			
Reg 14 CF 103 (a (regul)	summary section. All background material should be provide the framework and appropriate context for the useful to help the reader understand why the tests we research and development support certification, etc.) If necessary, you may insert the applicable portion of Table 1. TABLE 1 – EXAMPLE APPLICABLE R Ulation Paragraph Number Amendment R Part 25 / CS (As Required) A(b), (c), (d) A(b), (c), (d) State the detailed objective of the tests, including the a paraphrasing of the applicable FAR(s). This section the testing purpose. The test plan should be reference oriteria for the testing. For example, if the test purpose is to support an FAA (STC) project then the objective is to show complian research and development oriented, refer to the appli- characteristics of testing. Refer to appropriate guidan	discussed in this section. The information should test results reported. Background information is re convened itor example, in-service problem the table from the text plan document as shown EQULATION INFORMATION (Regulation Paragraph Title Stall Speed Determination (regulation paragraph title) (regulation paragraph title)			
Flight Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 67 of 82

Gulfstream

General FT Report Template

2.1 Test Objective

State the detailed objective of the tests, including the applicable Federal Aviation Regulation(s) (FAR) or a paraphrasing of the applicable FAR(s). This section provides the specific oriteria necessary to achieve the testing purpose. The test plan should be referenced here along with a restatement of the passifial criteria for the testing.

For example, if the test purpose is to support an FAAtype certificate (TC) or supplemental type certificate (STC) project, then the objective is to show compliance with the applicable regulations. If the project is research and development oriented, refer to the applicable engineering documents for specific criteria or characteristics of testing. Refer to appropriate guidance material or to project specific lssue Papers, special conditions, or equivalent safety findings for unique or novel criteria requirements. This section informs the reader about exactly what is intended to be achieved by this test.

2.2 Configuration

This section should be the same as in the test plan. terms to note here are any deviations from the intended configuration, reasons for the change, and what impact (if any) there is to the testing conducted.

2.3 Test Scope

Provide brief information about test aircraft, number of flights, test crew, etc. Refer to flight log table. State clearly whether all testing was completed, if any tests were not completed, or if there were any added tests. Details of added or deleted tests or test points should be provided in Test Results and Discussion section.

AVC No.	Date	Flight No.	ZFGW	ZFCG	TOGW	TOCG	Crew
XXXX	DDMMY Y	XXX	XXXXX lbs	*	XXXXX lbs	¥.	Name, role Name, role Name, role

TABLE2 . SUMMARY FUGHT TEST IN FORMATION

2.4 System Description

Same as test plan. Note any deviations to the plan and impact to the testing.

DOCUMENT NO. XXX-FTX-XXX

ITAR / EAR Control

REV --

PAGE 2

Flight Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 68 of 82

Gulfstream

General FT Report Template

2.5 Instrumentation

Same as test plan. Instrumentation list is included in Appendix A.

Note any deviations to the plan and impact to the testing.

2.6 Risk Assessment

If applicable, this section discusses the results of the Safety Review Board (SRB). Include statements which classified proposed tests with Low/Medium/High probability and consequence scales. Include applicable SRB meeting minutes and copies of the final, signed-off TSHA forms in Appendix B: Test Safety Hazard Analysis.

3.0 TEST RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

This section provides additional information about the testing methodology arranged according to the Regulation Paragraph Title as listed in the regulatory material listed in the associated plan document in Section 2.0, Applicable Regulations or Documentation.

3.1 Regulation Paragraph Title

The test results for each test procedure conducted during the test program must be discussed in this section. This should include a description of how the test was done and any deviations from the planned test procedure. Provide discussion of any test points added during the testing, or test points determined to be not required. Include all test points in the discussion, even if they did not meet the requirements, especially if certifying authorities participated in the testing. Indicate with a brief statement which points were not acceptable and why.

The test results can be presented in a variety of formats, based on the type of test conducted. The report writer will determine the best method, generally, a summary table with test point number, flight conditions, and figure number for reference time history data located in the Appendix C, Time History Data. Appropriate cross plots or other data should be included here as required to support the results. Note whether the test objectives were met or not.

3.2 Regulation Paragraph Title

Repeat as necessary.

4.0 CONCLUSIONS

Use this section to state conclusions based on data discussed in the test results and discussion section.

DOCUMENT NO. XXX-FTX-XXX

ITAR / EAR Control

PAGE 3

REV-

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 69 of 82

	DECOMMENDATIONS				
ə.U					
	this section is optional.				
	If the test results are satisfactory, then or to the FAA as appropriate. For exam	the recommendation should be to submit the data to engineering the submit the data to engineering the submit the data to engineering the submit			
	It is recommended that this rep	ont be submitted to (Gulfstream Engineering or the FAA) as			
	documentation that the primou	the applicable requirements of 14 CEP RVL as defined in Table			
	X, Regulation Information, in X	XX-FT-XXX, the associated flight test plan.			
	·····				
	this section is also used to document a	any procedural process changes identified during the testing			
	process.				
6.0	REFERENCES				
0.0	This section provides a list of all reference documents using the following format:				
	the section provides a list of all telefel	The second congrist to the second grant of the second			
	Document Number, Document Title, Do	cournent Release Date			
	Otherwise, refer to the Chicago Manual	t of Style or call Engineering Process Control for guidance in			
	structuring your list of references. Two	examples of the Chicago Manual of Style methodology for			
	documenting resources follow:				
	 Book: Last Name, First Na 	me, Title ; Edition. Location : Publisher, Year.			
	Online Book: Last Name #	First Name, 72/e, Edition Location: Publisher, Year, URL faces			
	Month Day, Year).				
		ġ.			
	, 44 s.				

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 70 of 82

Flight Test

APPENDIX A	INSTRUMENTATION PARAM	ETER LIST		
The following pa	rameters were recorded and form par	rt of the data in this test report:		
IADS Short Name/ GAC Code	IADS Parameter Name	IADS Long Name/ Description	Source	Units
[From Instrumentation Parameter List]	[From Instrumentation Parameter List]	[From Instrumentation Parameter List]	429, ASCB, Derived, Analog, etc	[From Instrumentation Parameter List]
	:	AN AN		



STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 71 of 82

Flight Test

Appendix A.8 Hazard Classification Guide

<u>Risk Rating Assessment Guidance</u>: The following criteria should be considered in assigning risk rating to test conditions:

- 1. Envelope expansion (higher risk) vs operations within a stable, proven region of the flight envelope (lower risk)
- 2. Altitude and airspeed in relation to established flight envelope limits or terrain and/or airplane recover equipment (higher)
- 3. Test technique and workload (higher workload could increase risk)
- 4. Gross weight and CG, in relation to envelope limits (operations near limits increase risk)
- 5. Environment (weather, ATC, Airport conditions and obstacles, lighting etc) (low visibility, obstacles increase risk)
- 6. Airplane internal environment (smoke, temperature, pressurization etc.) (abnormal or emergency procedures testing increase risk)
- 7. Design maturity –for example first attempts to define aerodynamic stall limit would be considered high risk, while subsequent approaches to a programmed alpha limiter or push would be considered a lower risk level and not required stall recovery parachute
- 8. Test condition sequence
- 9. Adverse system or software effects
- 10. Specific aircraft limitations
- 11. Consequence of failure in technique, system, or structure
- 12. Intentional multiple failure conditions (for example, single engine flight in EBHA FCS mode of operation)
- 13. Simulator, lab result, historical experiences, predictive studies
- 14. Crew proficiency, currency, familiarity, with the type of the test being performed and aircraft type

<u>Risk Alleviation Guidance</u>: Risk alleviation procedures are actions to minimize, understand, or respond to risk. They should be actions the flight test crew has control over or events that the test crew can confirm have occurred (ie lab testing, simulator evaluations, etc.). The following criteria should be considered in defining risk alleviation procedures::

- 1. Is the test condition in its present form really needed? Does the FAA need to repeat a test point or can it be done once, for concurrent credit? Can the test point be delegated?
- 2. Length of time since configuration validating or conformity
- 3. Review test techniques and specify steps to reduce the risk
- 4. Design the test for a conservative build up of maneuvers
- 5. Review the test environment and specify steps to reduce the risk (temperatures, winds, visibility are some examples)
- 6. Provide predications and expectations to prepare participants. Update performance predictions with flight test data when possible
- 7. Run test in simulator, lab, etc.
- 8. Provide special training and consultation

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 72 of 82

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

Flight Test

- 9. Specific training and equipment requirements (helmets, goggles, masks, oxygen, escape provisions, parachutes, fire extinguishing systems, escape saw and axes)
- 10. Use of chase plane observations to provide visual feedback
- 11. Use of photo/video coverage

stream

- 12. Use of telemetry to monitor the tests in real time
- 13. Install hardware to protect structure and personnel
- 14. Limit personnel onboard to the absolute minimum required to safely conduct the test (do not arbitrarily set a limit on the number of personnel, take the right number to safely conduct the test)
- 15. For build up tests, utilize the right personnel to evaluate the data and plan for subsequent tests. Allow for adequate time to evaluate the build up test points
- 16. Schedule flight crews based on crew qualifications and recent experience relative to the required tests being conducted
- 17. On certain potentially hazardous ground tests (e.g. high energy RTOs), experienced ground crews should be briefed during the preflight briefing and be immediately available to support the tests if necessary (e.g. cooling fans, fire trucks, aircraft jacks, etc.). The ground crews should be advised as to who is in charge, regarding their participation.
- 18. Review weight and balance computations. Weigh the loaded aircraft if necessary. This is particularly important on critical handling qualities tests at the extremes of the weight/CG envelope and WAT limited performance tests
- 19. Minimize the number of actual engine cuts during runway performance testing if spool-down thrust can be properly accounted for by analysis and related systems failures can be accurately simulated
- 20. All test personnel should be briefed on egress procedures
- 21. For high altitude flights, all crewmembers must be briefed on oxygen use/location
- 22. For over water flights, all crewmembers must be briefed on water survival equipment use/location
- 23. Test personnel involved with cold/hot weather testing should be briefed on appropriate survival skills, and be properly equipped to endure the anticipated environment

SRB Example Questions

The following questions are examples of the types of questions to be addressed at a Safety Review Board meeting:

- Have the project pilot, safety representatives, maintenance and support personnel participated in the planning
 process and provided inputs? (yes = lower risk)
- Does the test plan reflect inputs and considerations of all aspects of the test including supporting activities and special support items? ? (yes = lower risk)
- Have the test sorties been planned logically and progressively so that the least hazardous conditions are experienced and evaluated early in the program before the more hazardous ones? ? (yes = lower risk)
- Does the test require special instrumentation? If so, has a Failure Modes Effects Analysis (FMEA) been prepared and a safety analysis of the installation performed or scheduled?? (yes/no = higher risk)
- Have all anticipated hazards and precautions taken in response to them been documented? (yes = lower risk)
- What hazards remain after the precautions? Do these constitute any undue risk? (yes = higher risk)

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 73 of 82

Flight Test

 Has the possibility of multiple failures of systems during the test been recognized and addressed? (yes = lower risk) What actions would be required of the flight crew in response to multiple malfunctions? Are there any combinations of emergencies that could be catastrophic? (yes = higher risk)

- Is the program build-up for the hazardous tests satisfactory? (yes = lower risk)
- Are pilots trained for tests? (yes = lower risk)

fstream

- Who will make the go and/or no-go decisions for the tests?
- What limitations are imposed on the test by the airplane (structure, design), engineering (of the test airplane, test item or test equipment) or by the technical data?
- Has the number of crew members been kept to the minimum consistent with mission accomplishment? (yes = lower risk)
- Will any aspect of the test present an undue hazard to ground personnel or property? (yes = higher risk)
- Will the currently approved flight envelope be exceeded? (yes = higher risk) Has the envelope expansion been approved?
- Will safety- or photo-chase airplanes be required? (yes = higher risk)Has the chase pilot been included in test planning? (yes = lower risk) Have the chase pilot's duties been clearly identified? (yes = lower risk)
- Will radar tracking, telemetry, ground-based photography, or other ground-based support be required? (yes = lower risk)
- Will operational suitability of critical components be proven before the airplane is tested in a regime where such components may be subjected to extreme demands? (yes = lower risk)
- Have all ground crews (including test engineers, firefighters, crash rescue teams, and maintenance personnel) been appropriately trained? (yes = lower risk)
- Are there provisions to handle unexpected safety deficiencies? (yes = lower risk) Are there procedures inplace to immediately notify management and safety personnel of safety related events that occur during testing? (yes = lower risk)

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 74 of 82

Appendix A.9 Flight Test Briefing and De-Briefing Guide

The Gulfstream test mission briefing guide follows the requirements of FAA Order 4040.26A but moderated according to the order of material presented in the Test Card format

Test Card Cover Sheet

Flight Test

- 1. Flight Number
- 2. Purpose of the Test / Risk Classification
- 3. Zero Fuel Gross Weight/CG
- 4. Fuel Load
- 5. Takeoff Gross Weight/CG
- 6. Takeoff Flap and Reference Speeds
- 7. Emergency and Backup Communication Frequencies
- 8. Aircraft Configuration
- 9. Limitations / Restrictions
- 10. Hazard/TSHAs summary
- 11. Emergency equipment installation
- 12. Crew Members and Duties
- 13. Test Area Locations / Altitudes
- 14. Weather
- 15. Fuel Reserve Requirements
- 16. Primary / Alternate Landing Sites
- 17. Expected Landing Time
- 18. Emergency Response Plan (Coast Guard telephone numbers and frequencies)

Weight and Balance

19. Detailed review of Weight & Balance

THSAs

20. Medium and High Risk TSHAs discussed individually, including Preventative and Corrective Techniques

Individual Test Cards (in order of expected execution)

- 21. Test card number , Title, and Risk Classification
- 22. Test point set up / configuration requirements
- 23. Run number and test procedure steps (build up points will be assigned specific Run numbers (Note, Run numbers are a composite of the Test card number + a sequential letter ie/ 2A, 2B, 2C...)
- 24. Test Monitoring and Success Criteria

Instrumentation Status

25. Complete Preflight

Maintenance Status

- 26. Relevant Maintenance Actions
- 27. Open Squawks
- 28. Complete Preflight

QC Status

29. Complete Maintenance and Instrumentation Preflight Release

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 75 of 82

Flight Test

Appendix A.10 FAA MOU Flight Test Safety & Risk Assessment

Memo of Understanding

Flight Test Safety and Risk Assessment between FAA Atlanta Aircraft Certification Office and Gulfstream Aerospace Corporation

I. INTRODUCTION

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) between the Federal Aviation Administration Atlanta Certification Office (AACO) and Gulfstream Aerospace Corporation (GAC) is intended to establish a jointly agreed upon flight test risk assessment program for the FAA Type Certification and Supplemental Type Certification programs conducted by GAC or associated Completion and Service Centers. The MOU will serve as a guideline to insure an acceptable level of risk is established and maintained for all flight test activities involving FAA managed certification programs.

II. OBJECTIVE

This MOU coordinates GAC's Flight Test Risk Assessment/Risk Alleviation process and the FAA Risk Assessment Program as required by FAA Order 4040.26A to establish an Accepted Risk Assessment Process for evaluating and minimizing hazard levels in FAA certification testing.

III. REFERENCES

- 1. FAA Order 4040.26A Aircraft Certification Service Flight Safety Program
- FAA Atlanta Aircraft Certification Office, Standard Operating Procedures, -No: A-23-115 Rev B Flight Test Risk Management and Risk Assessment Process
- Gulfstream Aerospace Corporation Flight Test Standard Practices Manual (GV-GER-1329) Section 5 Risk Assessment/Risk Alleviation
- 4. Gulfstream Aerospace Corporation Flight Operations Manual Revision 4 dated 11/1/97

IV. TEST PLANNING

GAC is responsible for planning the test program and providing documentation to the FAA that outlines the means of compliance with Federal Regulations. Future documentation will also include an assessment of the risk involved in the Certification flight test program (see procedures below). This documentation will be coordinated with the FAA Program Manager (PM) and the AACO is responsible for providing their approval with the proposed means of compliance. In addition, the AACO will provide concurrence with the GAC Risk Assessment prior to issuance of the TIA. The FAA must be given an adequate time for review and approval. Two to four weeks is considered adequate time for review and approval. Changes to the Certification Flight Test program after release of the TIA must be subjected to the Risk Assessment/Risk Alleviation procedures specified by GAC standard practices and submitted to the AACO for concurrence.

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 76 of 82

V. TEST CONDUCT

stream

Flight Test

The Flight Test Techniques used during FAA Certification Programs will be those procedures refined and successfully utilized during the GAC development testing or prior Certification programs. If such procedures differ from published FAA guidance material differences must be resolved by preparation of an Issue Paper and coordinated with FAA Transport Airplane Division. For HIGH risk test points and those unique situations where a test point is being conducted for the first time with FAA Flight Test personnel for Certification credit, the pilot flying will be coordinated between FAA and GAC test crews to insure the highest level of safety is maintained.

Testing conducted during an FAA test flight will be limited to the test points and procedures reviewed during the preflight briefing and documented on the Flight Test Cards. Exceptions to this can be considered if the deviations are minor, have an insignificant impact on the planned flight and are approved by the GAC Pilot in Command. The preflight briefings will also include a review of applicable Test Safety Hazard Analysis (TSHAs) that have been generated for any MEDIUM or HIGH risk testing. These documents provide procedures for risk mitigation and are the basis for establishing an acceptable level of risk.

All flight testing shall include necessary environmental precautions appropriate to the planned test and test location (e.g., over water, arctic, desert, etc.). All tests identified as MEDIUM or HIGH risk shall be completed no less than one hour prior to sunset to allow adequate time for search and rescue efforts.

VI. RISK LEVEL

FAA may not participate in testing rated by GAC as HIGH risk without written authorization from the Manager, AACO. FAA personnel participating in LOW and MEDIUM risk level tests will be governed by the GAC Flight Test Risk Assessment/Risk Alleviation process.

VII. STAFFING

FAA personnel that could be involved with flight testing includes Flight Test Pilots, Flight Test Engineers and Engineering Specialists. GAC will be notified of FAA personnel expected for each series of tests. The FAA will try to minimize personnel changes during a certification program in order to provide continuity. It is possible that additional FAA personnel may be brought into the program to facilitate meeting GAC schedules or that personnel may be rotated to meet other FAA commitments.

VIII. TRAINING

GAC will provide informal training for all FAA personnel who participate in the flight test program. Follow-on training and training of replacement personnel will also be provided by GAC.

FAA will provide formal training as required to assure that all personnel participating in GAC flight tests are properly qualified. This training shall include survival and physiological training as well as pilot proficiency training as necessary to maintain currency in category and class aircraft.

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 77 of 82

IX.

Flight Test

FAA Flight Crew Members will observe the Crew Duty and Crew Rest Requirements specified in the GAC Flight Operations Manual 1 (see Ref. 4) or the Aircraft Certification Service (AIR) Flight test Operations Manual, whichever is more restrictive..

The FAA Flight Crew Members must approve any request to extend the prescribed Crew Duty/Rest requirements prior to obtaining concurrence from GAC's Chief Test Pilot.

X. PROCEDURES

DUTY TIME

GAC will provide a Risk Assessment section in all Certification Flight Test Plans submitted for Type Certification projects. This section will specify the level of risk involved and identify testing that is considered either MEDIUM or HIGH Risk.

GAC will provide a Risk Assessment section in all Certifications Plans submitted to the AACO for Completion Center and Service Center STC projects. This section will specify the level of risk involved and identify testing that is considered either MEDIUM or HIGH Risk.

GAC will provide Test Safety Hazard Analysis forms that define procedures for minimizing the associated hazards for all test points that are either MEDIUM or HIGH Risk.

GAC will convene Safety Review Boards for FAA programs when Certification testing exceeds the scope or risk of GAC Development testing.

GAC's FAA Coordinator will provide notification of Flight Test SRB activity relating to FAA Test Programs.

GAC will notify FAA of any changes to the corporate Safety Review Process.

FAA will participate as an observer in GAC Flight Test Safety Review Boards (SRB) that are convened for Certification Testing as required.

FAA will concur with the proposed risk assessments provided in the Certification Documentation mentioned above prior to issuance of the TIA.

FAA will obtain written authorization from the ACO Manager to participate in any testing classified as HIGH risk.

FAA will include in the 18B Section of each TIA a statement for the Flight Test Pilot to review the TSHAs for possible safety precautions to incorporate in the conduct of testing.

FAA Flight Test Crew members will review each Test Safety Hazard Analysis (TSHA) and must concur with the proposed risk alleviation methods prior to conducting any FAA Test Flight.

XI. CONCLUSION

FAA has reviewed the GAC processes for Flight Safety and Flight Operations and considers them acceptable to establish an adequate level of safety for FAA Flight Test programs conducted for the purposes of Type Certification and/or Supplemental Type Certification.

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 78 of 82

Flight Test

8/2/08 Date

7/30/08 Date

Vicé President, Engineering Gulfstream Aerospace Corp

Manager, Flight Test

FAA AACO



 Director, Flight and Lab Test Gulfstream Aerospace Corp



Vice President, Flight Operations Gulfstream Aerospace Corp.

Date

<u>7/23/08</u> Date

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 79 of 82

Flight Test

Appendix A.11 Weight and Balance Forms



FIGURE 30 - W&B FORM A

Flight Test

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 80 of 82

Neutron Atomics Atomics Neutron Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics Otos Finis under 1. Der Simpling Atomics Atomics Atomics							AIRCRAF	T.TOTAL (BEPTY	WEIGHT
Netribut Carbon Table Interval Interval		and the second	a da se	a statistica de la constatistica de la constatistica de la constatistica de la constatistica de la constatistic	and a second	and the second sec	Weight (D)	GVIFS	MOMENT (In-ID)
		a supervision of the supervision of		and a second s	Charles	us Encoly Weight			
	ari Number & Describiton				ITEN				
	teors subsequent to weighting!	AUCES EV		Weight SID	CG GVIES	(ITHEY	in an	and the second secon	
		and the second se		A CONTRACT OF	and a second		and the second second		
		and a state of the	and the second se	And a second s	and the second sec	A second s	a francisson san tan tan a	an a	and the second secon
				and the second se			A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	and a subscription of the	- Ar-
				an ann an			Service of the states of the Service Se	instruction of the second s	
		and the second se	11 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	2	A second s	C) 	1	3. Sister and a second
	and the company of the state of	All and a constant work water delivery balance	and an and a state of the state of the	and a second state and a second state of the s	Trac utborneds instability	A Contract of A code (Acceleration of	it.	2010	and the second se
	 March 1990 Science and a second se Second second secon second second sec	and the second secon		and the second of the second se	A manual course in	in	. Start	and the second second second	the second second
		in the second	and the second	1		And a second second second	and the second se	in the second second region	
		 Manual and a second seco	de la constance	Sectors Sectors Sectors	i		A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	The second s	A. A. Arren and and a
					A second s		and the second secon		
				and the second secon		a second to the second second			and the second
		[1] S. M. S. M S. M. S. M S. M. S. M. S	A STATE AND AND A STATE AND A	and the second	and the second	and a second	A DESCRIPTION OF A DESC		1
								and the second se	and the second se
		and the second secon	Solution and the second second	S.	and a state of the second second second	X Submitter in the second seco	Party and a second of the second second	ja Sisen siinsessessessesses ast colored	A to a statement
		and a second			. In all have described as the second	and the second sec	A CALE AND ADDRESS OF A CALE AND ADDRESS OF A CALE ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF ADDRESS OF A CALE ADDRESS OF A CALE ADDRESS OF A CALE ADDRESS OF A CALE ADDRESS OF	and a hard a second s	and a second s
		and the second se	والتركيم والمركية والمعاول والم	i. 1911 - State Barton and an an Alban an Anna.		and the second	11. militaren bitaria antaŭpinakon 1864.	A STATEMENT OF A STAT	tan 2. 1980 - Anne an an air air ann
		ى چەربىغىنى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى بىرى ب	and the second sec	in the second	and the second	and the second se	American and a second second	a service a service of the service o	Lever
		and and a second s		A second s		Second on the second providence of	orana ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang	and the second sec	an Brong management and a sub- bio biological Analysis and an and
	and the second	and the second se			and the second se	An and the factor of the second	All and a second se	P. S.	and the second se
		and a second of the second	A Contraction of the second			Sand and an and a state of	 Contract of the second sec second second sec	an ann ann ann an 1911. Anns anns anns anns anns anns anns anns	ter and a second se
	and a second	and the second		A STATE OF A	Contraction of the second		1	and the second	and the second second second
							a sa		
		a de la desta de la desta En desta de la d	A statement of the stat	C. And the second of the second s		1 States of the second s	 Second second sec	is Anna ann ann ann ann ann ann ann ann ann	1
	and the second			je			the second second		and the second
		and the second	and a second	A Contraction of the second seco	A Section in the section of the	A The second	of the second	A Commence of the second s	a de marene de la composition
	and a second	وبالموادم والمواد والمناسب والمواد والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والمراجع والم		A State of the second sec	a second and the second se Second second			and the second	N.
								and the second sec	
		 A state of the sta							tut tutori da estare
				Contraction of State and the second	and the second				
		a States - States - Sta	A STATE OF A	and the second se	and the state of t	Construction of the second second	an the second	A state of the second se	A Star an one
		and the second se	and the second se	and the second secon			ราการการเราะระบบการการการการการการการการการการการการการก	jeno o na selecto e de la composición de la comp	and the second second second
									.71

FIGURE 31 - W&B FORM C



Flight Test

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 81 of 82

FLIGHT LOADING COMPUTATION FORM GULFSTREAM G650 S/N REGISTRATION NO				
Trip No:	Take Off Field Leng	ե		
Date	Temp ºC /	liowable TOW		
To an	Estimated Landing V	Neight		
Rom.	Landing Field Lengt	h Required	an a	
		ç	a statistica a second	
TEMS	WEIGHT	GVIFS*	MOMENT	
Empty Weight	an a		ky posej se obratili s Nationaly se time i si su	
Add Operating Items				
	y mananany faraha ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang ang an			
	and the second secon			
ى بىلى بەر مەرىپى ئىلىغان بەر ئەرەپ يېرىك بەرەپ يېرىك بەرەپ يېرىك بەرەپ يېرىك بەرەپ يېرىك بەرەپ يېرىك بەرەپ يې يېرىكى بېرىكى	na ing setup ang setup setup setup setup. Panang setup se			
	n ang sang sang sang sang sang sang sang			
nel 1. Senten en 1997 e Al presenten en 1997 en			na hana a tana ana ana ana ana ana ana ana a	
n an talan sa kana na kana kana kana na	n principal de principal de la composition de la composition de la composition de la composition de la composit Altra composition de la composition de l			
an a			nega ante ante a consecuta de la consecuta de Referencia de la consecuta de la	
			enterneter en	
te e persona de la calencia de la composición de la calega				
🗣 og slift for an en	n sen en en el composition de la compo La composition de la c La composition de la c			
n an	n de la seconda de la companya de l La companya de la comp La companya de la comp			
an a		Weise the states in the	an a	
	na in a standard a standard	hipo na amana da si d Na	en de la francista de la sita.	
n an	and a second		ار بر بریز در معنان بر این از این در ا	
	 A set of the set o		and a second	
			and the state of the second	
	anan artis Anan artis			
Operating Weight	tangan ang kanggang <mark>angkang ang kang bang bang ang kang bang bang bang bang bang bang bang b</mark>	اليونية المراجعة الم المراجعة المراجعة الم	<u>e an </u>	
Add Paylood;	andar Alberta esta esta esta esta esta esta esta es			
			en e	
Zero + Uel Weight (60,500 to Max)			en en service en	
AGO F USI	an an tha an Tha an tha an	en de la composition de la composition Composition de la composition de la comp		
Hemb taedur (160'006 (D Wax)	en en en son son en en e		Maria a la construcción de la cons Na construcción de la construcción d	
			tell and the second second second	

FIGURE 32 - W&B FORM D

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE

FLIGHT TEST STANDARD PRACTICE MANUAL

FT- SOP-001 Rev - A Page 82 of 82

Flight Test

Appendix A.12 Example FTE Flight Report

G150 S/N 201 Flight 039 Flight 040 Flight 041 26 October 2008 Crew: **Flight Data:** 039 040 041 **Block Time** 1+59 0+44 0+26 **Flight Time** 0 + 161+53 0+39 1 Landing 5 Landings, 16 T&G 3 Landings

Purpose:

Steep Approach Landings

Configuration Notes:

- Video camera(2) Pilot and Copilot MFD view
- Pilot brake pedal position transducer installed
- DCU-5010 Software version 4.2 (EMOD 02)

Flight Summary:



Maintenance Issues:

Instrumentation Issues: None